To the Mayor and Councillors of the London Borough of Lambeth

YOU ARE SUMMONED TO ATTEND A MEETING of the COUNCIL to be held in the Main Hall - Elm
Green School, Elmcourt Rd, London SE27 9BZ on Wednesday 18 May 2016 at 7.00 pm

SEAN HARISS
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Wayne Chandai, Telephone: 020 7926 0029; Email: wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk
Published on: Tuesday 10 May 2016
@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

AGENDA
Appendices to reports – bulky appendices are published on the website www.lambeth.gov.uk and can
be obtained from Democratic Services. They are not circulated with the agenda.
Page
Nos.

1.

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests

Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct
(para. 4)) in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council,
a committee, sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw
from the meeting room during the whole of the consideration of that
matter and must not participate in any vote on that matter unless a
dispensation has been obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

2.

Announcements

3.

Minutes

1-6

To approve and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on 13
April 2016.
4.

School debating Competition - Prize Giving Ceremony

5.

Petitions, PNQs and Deputations

No public notice questions were received.
Petitions will be presented at the meeting by Councillors.
The deadline for the receipt of requests for a deputation is 5pm
Friday 13 May 2016. Email: wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk
6.

Cabinet Statement

7.

Opposition Statement

8.

Questions from Councillors

9.

Reports

a)

The Gambling Act 2005: Review of Lambeth Statement of Principles
2016-19

23 - 66

b)

Pay Policy Statement 2016/17

67 - 86

c)

Constitution 2016-17 (in year changes)

87 - 94

d)

Corporate Committee Annual Report

95 - 110

10.

Motions

111 - 118

11.

Voting

7 - 22

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.
Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact Democratic
Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair of the
meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons including disruption caused by
the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that it
can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.
Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the website
www.lambeth.gov.uk)

Further assistance
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting. If you have any specific needs please contact
Facilities Management (020 7926 1010) in advance.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

COUNCIL
Wednesday 13 April 2016 at 7.00 pm
MINUTES
The Worshipful the Mayor in the Chair

COUNCILLORS PRESENT:
Councillor Danial Adilypour, Councillor Michelle Agdomar, Councillor Scott Ainslie,
Councillor Adedamola Aminu, Councillor David Amos, Councillor Donatus Anyanwu,
Councillor Liz Atkins, Councillor Mary Atkins, Councillor Matthew Bennett, Councillor
Anna Birley, Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite, Councillor Tim Briggs, Deputy Mayor
Marcia Cameron, Councillor Rezina Chowdhury, Councillor Marsha de Cordova,
Councillor Edward Davie, Councillor Max Deckers Dowber, Councillor Jacqui Dyer,
Councillor Jane Edbrooke, Councillor Annie Gallop, Councillor Adrian Garden,
Councillor Bernard Gentry, Councillor Nigel Haselden, Councillor Jack Holborn,
Councillor Claire Holland, Councillor Jack Hopkins, Mayor Saleha Jaffer, Councillor
John Kazantzis, Councillor Ben Kind, Councillor Paul McGlone, Councillor Jackie
Meldrum, Councillor Diana Morris, Councillor Louise Nathanson, Councillor Matt
Parr, Councillor Lib Peck, Councillor Guilherme Rosa, Councillor Neil Sabharwal,
Councillor Mohammed Seedat, Councillor Iain Simpson, Councillor Joanne Simpson,
Councillor Martin Tiedemann, Councillor Amélie Treppass, Councillor Christiana
Valcarcel, Councillor Imogen Walker, Councillor Christopher Wellbelove, Councillor
Clair Wilcox and Councillor Andrew Wilson
APOLOGIES:

Councillor Alex Bigham, Councillor Linda Bray
Councillor Malcolm Clark, Councillor Fred Cowell,
Councillor Kevin Craig, Councillor Jim Dickson,
Councillor Florence Eshalomi, Councillor Niranjan
Francis, Councillor Paul Gadsby, Councillor Rachel
Heywood, Councillor Robert Hill, Councillor Jennie
Mosley, Councillor Jane Pickard, Councillor Sally
Prentice and Councillor Sonia Winifred

Page 2
1.

ELECTION OF MAYOR
Councillor Donatus Anyanwu in the Chair
MOVED by Councillor Paul McGlone, SECONDED by Councillor Jo Simpson and:
RESOLVED: That Councillor Saleha Jaffer be elected to the office of the Mayor of
the London Borough of Lambeth for the municipal year 2016-17.
The following declaration was made and subscribed before the Chief Executive:
‘I, Councillor Saleha Jaffer, having been elected to the office of Mayor of the London
Borough of Lambeth hereby declare that I take that office upon myself, and will duly
and faithfully fulfil the duties of it according to the best of my judgement and ability.’
The meeting was adjourned from 7.10pm to 7.22pm to enable the investiture to take
place.
Councillor Saleha Jaffer in the Chair
The Mayor invited one of her grandsons to read Koranic verses. She then thanked
Councillors for their attendance and addressed Council. She stated that her goal for
Mayoralty would be to maintain and grow the bonds between communities, and to
help them strengthen their faith and respect for each other. She outlined her work in
combating radicalisation as secretary of Families Against Stress and Trauma
(FAST), the aim of which was to provide support to the vulnerable and raise
awareness of counter-terrorism, bringing faiths together to engage in open dialogue
and aid faiths in understanding each other. She also expressed a desire to offer
support and aid to the voluntary sector.
In addition, she noted the great challenges faced by the Council, but expressed a
desire to work hard to uphold the traditions of free and fair debate and encouraged
all Councillors to work decisively to make Lambeth a better place in which to live,
work and play. Thanks were given to the outgoing Mayor, Councillor Donatus
Anyanwu, and the Mayor stated that she looked forward to receiving his advice and
support.
The Mayor then invited another one of her grandsons to give a brief speech. He
stated that one of his strongest memories was of his grandmother stating that she
went into public life in order to invest time in the future of her children and
grandchildren.

2.

ELECTION OF DEPUTY MAYOR
MOVED by Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite, SECONDED by Councillor Amelie
Treppass and:
RESOLVED: That Councillor Marcia Cameron be elected to the office of Deputy
Mayor of the London Borough of Lambeth for the municipal year 2016-17.
The following declaration was made and subscribed before the Chief Executive:
‘I, Marcia Cameron, having been elected to the office of Deputy Mayor of the London
Borough of Lambeth hereby declare that I take that office upon myself, and will duly
and faithfully fulfil the duties of it according to the best of my judgement and ability.’

ii

Page 3
3.

REPORT ON MAYORAL ACTIVITIES 2015/16
The former Mayor read out his report that highlighted his mayoral activities in 201516. He placed special emphasis on his work with schools and on youth disability
issues. He also emphasised his work with the Terrence Higgins Trust and the
importance of regular HIV testing.
The Leader of the Council, Councillor Lib Peck and the Leader of the Opposition,
Councillor Tim Briggs, both offered their thanks to the outgoing Mayor.

4.

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS
There were none.

5.

MINUTES
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 24 February 2016 be
approved and signed as a correct record of the proceedings.

6.

CABINET PORTFOLIOS, OTHER ADMINISTRATION AND OPPOSITION
APPOINTMENTS
RESOLVED:
(1) That the appointments by Councillor Lib Peck, Leader of the Council, for the
municipal year 2016-17 be noted.
(2) That the other Cabinet and group appointments be noted.

7.

REVIEW OF ALLOCATION OF SEATS TO POLITICAL GROUPS
MOVED by Councillor Paul McGlone, SECONDED by Councillor Jo Simpson and:
RESOLVED:
Council
1) That the report of the Chief Executive setting out the recommended
allocation of seats to political groups, as set out in the agenda, be adopted.
2) That the Appointments Committee and Licensing Committee be invited to
note the constitution of and confirm the sizes of the sub-committees and
allocation of seats between political groups on the sub-committee as set out
in the agenda.
Appointment Committee and Licensing Committee
1) That the size of sub-committees and allocation of seats between political
groups on those sub-committees as set out in the report be confirmed.

8.

CONSTITUTION 2016-17
The Leader of the Opposition, Councillor Tim Briggs, addressed Council. He
expressed concern at the level of payment for Special Responsibility Allowances in
a time of austerity.
Councillor Louise Nathanson addressed Council and questioned the wisdom of
payments made to Special Project Leads as outlined in the report. She suggested
that expenditure could be better addressed towards tackling homelessness.
Furthermore, she expressed concern at individual Councillors’ activity on Twitter,
and stated that social media should not be used to mock residents.
iii

Page 4
Councillor Bernard Gentry addressed Council. He expressed dissatisfaction that
there was no amendment to the part of the Constitution stating that five members’
signatures were needed in order to call a special meeting of Council; which meant
that the entire opposition would be unable to do so. He also stated that there was a
perception amongst residents that their concerns were not listened to.
Councillor Imogen Walker addressed Council. She stated that Conservative
comments were hypocritical, as it was a Conservative-led central Government which
had cut the Council budget by £238 million. The special responsibility and project
payments were justified by the need to maximise the use of talent within the Labour
Group.
Voting:
For: 43
Against: 3
Abstentions: 1
CARRIED
MOVED by Councillor Paul McGlone, SECONDED by Councillor Jo Simpson and
RESOLVED:
Council
(1) To note the table of proposed changes to the Council’s Constitution
(Appendix 1).
(2) To approve the Council’s Constitution 2016-17 (Appendix 1), including:
 The responsibility for functions, including the executive, local choice
functions and the discharge of functions by way of the joint
committees and other bodies
 Scheme of delegation to Cabinet Members and officers, as set out in
the Constitution
 Establishment of Cabinet, including its terms of reference.
 Scrutiny arrangements: appointment of the Overview & Scrutiny
Committee with the terms of reference, constitution and membership
 Rules of procedure (Part 3)
 Codes and protocols (Part 4)
 Members allowance scheme (Part 5)
 Management structure (Part 6)
(3) To approve the Member Allowances scheme as set out in Appendix 2 and
detailed in paragraph 2.4 and 2.5 of the report.
(4) To appoint the Chairs, Vice-Chairs and other members of committees
(including substitute members except where such members are excluded by
its constitution) (Appendix 3).
(5) To recommend the Appointments, Corporate, Licensing and Standards
Committees to appoint their respective sub-committees with the terms of
reference, constitution and membership (including substitute members
except where such members are excluded by its constitution).
(6) To invite Cabinet to appoint the bodies to undertake executive functions as
set out in Part 2, Section 2 of the Constitution.
(7) To invite Cabinet to confirm the renewal of all joint arrangements (whether by
way of joint committee or otherwise) as detailed in Part 2, Section 5 of the
Constitution, which, following the adoption by the Council of executive of
arrangements, became either the sole responsibility of the Cabinet, or partly
the responsibility of the Cabinet and partly the responsibility of the Council.
iv

Page 5
(8) To appoint the representatives of the Council on other bodies and outside
organisations (Appendix 4).
(9) To approve the annual schedule of meetings set out in Appendix 5.
(10)
To approve the appointment of Alison McKane (Head of Legal) to the
Statutory role of Monitoring Officer to the Council.
(11)
To approve the appointment of Wayne Chandai (Democratic Services
and Scrutiny Manager) to the Statutory role of Scrutiny Officer for the
Council.
(12)
To approve the appointment of Helen Charlesworth-May (Strategic
Director, Children, Adults and Health) to the Statutory role of Director of Adult
Social Services for the Council.
Joint Meeting of Appointments, Corporate, Licensing and Standards Committees
(1) To appoint the respective sub-committees with the terms of reference,
constitution and membership (including substitute members) as detailed in
Part 1, Part 2 Section 1, and Part 3 Section 6 of the Constitution and
Appendix 3.
Cabinet
(1) To note the arrangements for the discharge of executive functions and local
choice functions set out in Part 2, Sections 2 & 5 of the Constitution.
(2) To appoint the bodies to undertake executive functions with the terms of
reference, constitution and membership (including substitute members) as
detailed in Part 2, Section 2 of the Constitution 2014-15 and Appendix 3.
(3) To note the scheme of delegation to Cabinet Members and officers, in
relation to the discharge of executive functions, including the schedules
thereto which apply to Cabinet Members, Executive Directors, Assistant
Directors, Divisional Directors and Business Unit Managers, as set out in
Part 2, Section 4 of the Constitution 2016-17.
(4) To confirm the renewal of all joint arrangements (whether by way of a joint
committee or otherwise) which, following the adoption by the Council of
executive arrangements, became either the sole responsibility of the
Cabinet, or partly the responsibility of the Cabinet and partly the
responsibility of the Council, as set out in Part 2, Section 5 of the Constitution
2015-16.
(5) To approve the appointment of representatives of the Council on other
bodies and outside organisations for which Cabinet is responsible (Appendix
4).

The meeting ended at 8.45 pm
MAYOR
Wednesday 18 May 2016
Date of Despatch: Thursday 21 April 2016
Contact for Enquiries: Wayne Chandai

Tel: 020 7926 0029
Fax: (020) 7926 2361
E-mail: wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

v

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 7

Agenda Item 8

Council
Date of Meeting: 18 May 2016
Questions from Councillors
Wards: All
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director Corporate Resources: Jackie Belton
Contact for enquiries: Wayne Chandai, Democratic Services Manager, Corporate Affairs,
020 7926 0029,
wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
Questions and answers submitted by Councillors, in accordance with Standing Order 12, are
set out below.

Page 8

1. Councillor Bernard Gentry
To: Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport – Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite
Parking Management Services
Why has the Labour administration allowed unauthorised spends of £1,236,375 and £12,375
(Enforcement Services 1 Feb - 30 Apr 2016) in Parking Management Services? These figures
only came to light in a Cabinet Member Decision paper asking the member to 'note' the
relevant spending.
Why has yet another failure to monitor budgets come to light at a time when the council was
setting its budget for the 2016/17 financial year, and is wasting millions of pounds on a
Communications department to try to convince residents that it has no money?
Can the Labour administration confirm that it will conduct a full investigation into how this
situation arose, detailing who is responsible for it, who knew about it, and when?
Party: Conservative
Answer:
The contract for Parking Management Services has produced savings of £1.85 million in
recent years – just one of many examples of how this administration has achieved
efficiencies across the organisation. These efficiencies have allowed us to continue to
provide the vital services that many of our residents rely on, in the face of huge government
cuts supported by Lambeth’s Conservative councillors.
Councillor Gentry has raised his concerns with the Chief Executive and a full response to his
concerns was provided to him on 27 April by the Council’s Monitoring Officer. The facts are
as follows:
1.

The Council awarded a contract for Parking Management Services (Lots 1 Enforcement and 2 - Nuisance Vehicle Removal services) to NCP Services Ltd for a
period of 5 years from 1 August 2008. The contract contained an option to extend for
a further 5 year period (ie until 31 July 2018) at the Council’s discretion.

2.

At the end of the original 5 year contract period the contract was subsequently
extended, originally until 31 July 2015 and subsequently for a further 6 month period
until 31 January 2016 whilst the Council considered options for the future provision of
the parking service.

3.

In January 2016 the re-procurement of the contract had not been completed. In
accordance with the original contract the Council still had the option to further extend
the original contract by a further period of 30 months. A report was prepared to take
this decision formally and the decision was originally due to be taken in January
2016, ie before the authorised extension period had expired. The report was
considered by the Procurement Board on 28 January 2016, chaired by the Council’s
Internal Auditor. The report author was asked to clarify a number of detailed issues
regarding the contract and its value and what savings had been secured. The original

Page 9

4.

report in January 2016 had requested an extension until 31 July 2016 and the Board
queried whether it was realistic for the procurement to take place within that period
and recommended a longer extension period until 30 September 2016 in order to
ensure a more realistic timeframe.
We acknowledge that there were some delays in amendments being made to the
report. As a result there was a gap between the report being signed off by the Chair
of the Procurement Board and the contract extension period beginning. The
amended report gave approval for the contract to be extended until 30 September
2016.

Both the Council’s Monitoring Officer and the Council’s Internal Auditor are satisfied that
there is no impropriety in the contract arrangements and no “unauthorised spending” on the
basis that:





The original contract envisaged provided for a contract extension for up to five years until
July 2018.
The extension which is the subject of the report was clearly carefully scrutinised by the
procurement board back in January 2016 and was approved at that time subject to it
coming back for the Chair’s approval once the report had been rewritten to provide
clarification around various issues, which was unfortunately subsequently delayed for the
reasons set out above.
The Cabinet Member decision report makes it clear that the so called “unauthorised
spend” referred to in the report was in fact already authorised by the previous extension.
The report records the fact that savings of £1.85 million have been achieved over the
period 2013 – 2015. In many ways this is an example of excellent contract management
albeit that the paperwork could have been completed in a more timely manner.

2. Councillor Scott Ainslie
To: Cabinet Member for Environment & Transport – Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite
20mph on red routes
Now that Lambeth Council has introduced a 20mph borough wide limit will it press Transport
for London to introduce a 20mph limit on Red Routes within the borough, and reclassify the
A23 through Streatham as a "High Street" rather than a "High Road" placing less emphasis
on the movement of traffic, and more on it being a place where people live?
Party: Green
Answer:
I welcome Councillor Ainslie’s support for the borough-wide 20mph speed limit, which was
introduced last month and fulfils a key manifesto pledge we made to residents in 2014. Our
commitment to slower traffic and safer streets has been recognised by the ‘20’s Plenty’
campaign group who said that “of all the boroughs to have taken up 20mph in recent times
Lambeth has embraced it most fully.”

Page 10

As part of the development of the 20mph limit, the council worked closely with Transport for
London who is committed to introducing 20mph limits under experimental traffic orders in the
following red route locations within the borough:
-

Brixton Town Centre
Clapham High Street
Stamford Street
Westminster Bridge Road

These four schemes on the Transport for London road network are anticipated to be
operational by June 2016. The council will continue to press Transport for London to introduce
further 20mph controls on its network, including Streatham High Road.

3. Councillor Vaila McClure
To: Cabinet Member for Housing – Councillor Matthew Bennett
Affordable Homes
Can the Cabinet Member provide us with an update on Lambeth’s programme for building
affordable homes in the borough?
Party: Labour
Answer
The scale of London’s housing crisis is severe and Lambeth is no exception. We have
22000 people on our waiting list for social housing, almost 1900 homeless households,
including almost 5000 children, living in temporary accommodation and over 1300 families
living in severely overcrowded accommodation. In the context of this housing crisis, Lambeth
council is taking direct action to build more affordable housing in the borough.
We are developing surplus land such as Somerleyton Road; reducing the number of council
buildings we use and building homes as part of the YNTH programme; regenerating some of
our low-density estates; working with housing associations to promote more affordable
homes in their schemes. The council is also working in partnership with affordable housing
developers such as Pocket, who are building 125 affordable homes for first time buyers, with
priority being given to those living and working in Lambeth. Unlike the government's 'Starter
Homes' these homes will remain below market price and affordable to local people in
perpetuity.
Our planning policies also set out our ambitions to achieve a minimum of 40% affordable
housing on new developments and we have an excellent track record of negotiating with
private developers to build affordable housing through s.106 agreements.
As the former Mayor of London introduced a policy redefining ‘Affordable Rent’ as anything
up to 80% of market value, the Council set out to build more genuinely affordable properties
by setting a target to providing 1,000 new properties at Council rent levels over five years.

Page 11

Council Schemes
Through estate regeneration, Somerleyton Road, YNTH and infill schemes, the cabinet has
already given approval for over 600 new homes in the borough at council rent levels. This is
the biggest council-led building programme in Lambeth for over a generation and represents
this administration’s commitment to building the homes we need to house the people of
Lambeth.
Significant progress is being made with the Council’s development programme. Construction
has started on three sites – Ackerman Road, St. Oswald’s and Lollard Street – providing
approximately 100 council rent properties in total. Homes at Ackerman Road are being built
to the environmental gold standard Passivhaus design, which will significantly reduce energy
bills for tenants.
Our estate regeneration schemes will rebuild homes for our tenants and increase the
number of Council rent homes for local people. There will be no loss of social housing on
any of the estates. This means that all existing tenants get a new home, built to high
standards, designed to meet the needs of their family, with new, genuinely affordable,
homes at council rent levels being built for those in housing need.
We've looked at other smaller sites as well and are in the process of packaging these into a
portfolio of developments which will see a significant number of new homes built. These
include approximately 60 new homes on the current site of Fitch Court in central Brixton and
up to 47 new homes as infill on the Hemans Estate in Stockwell.
To deliver this ambitious programme the Council is setting up Homes for Lambeth, a
company that will be wholly-owned by the council, which will be able to attract funds to
increase development and which will be registered as a housing association so that tenants
can be offered lifetime assured tenancies, matching as closely as possible their existing
legal rights under a secure tenancy. This will also mean not having to work with private
developers, ensuring that money that would have been lost as developer’s profit can instead
be recycled into building more genuinely affordable homes.
The administration is also committed to building homes at intermediate rent levels, targeted
at families on wages who struggle to afford private rent levels and who will never reach the
top of the waiting list for council homes; and also to build homes for private renters with
securer, longer-term tenancies so that we can start to meet the housing needs and
aspirations of the wider Lambeth community.
Affordable Housing Programme
In terms of the larger “affordable housing” programme for the whole of Lambeth, consisting
of both the council led provision described above that being built by housing associations,
there are 2,200 units that are being developed with 576 being completed in 2016/17 and 476
in 2017/18. Most of the accommodation (60%) is affordable housing to rent, and 900 units
are Intermediate Accommodation to provide low-cost homeownership and a range of renting
opportunities for younger people and professionals who cannot affordable market prices.

Page 12

Housing associations are also contributing to the 1,000 new homes target, with the Council
and housing associations having either started the construction or completed just over 250
homes (25%).

4. Councillor Rezina Chowdhury
To: Deputy Leader of the Council (Investment and Partnerships) – Councillor Paul
McGlone
Council Tax Support
Could the Cabinet Member give us an update on how he expects Lambeth’s council tax
support scheme to benefit vulnerable residents in Lambeth in the year ahead?
Party: Labour
Answer:

Despite the cut in funding when the former universal Council Tax Benefit was transferred to
councils in 2013/14, Lambeth council has continued to protect and support the most
vulnerable residents through our own Council Tax Support scheme.
In 2015/16, the scheme helped 33,000 people. Of those, 11,000 are pensioners. The
remaining 22,300 are ‘working age’, of which 9,200 or 41% fall into Lambeth’s exempted
‘Protected’ categories (Disabled, Carers, those subject to the Benefits Cap, and War Widows
and Widowers). Lambeth therefore has fully protected just over 20,000 households or 61%
of those eligible for CTS. For 2016/17 the CTS scheme remains unchanged, as agreed at
full council in January 2016.
Lambeth’s local CTS scheme has become a key element of the council’s financial resilience
strategy. This brings together all available help for vulnerable residents in one place as well
as providing financial advice to help residents better manage their finances and avoid debt.
Unfortunately, funding has continued to decline for Council Tax Support in line with overall
local government funding settlement cuts. Therefore the ‘gap’ between what we spend in
Council Tax Support (CTS) and what the government gave us funding for is projected to be
£4.8m by 2017/18. This is a pattern we have seen repeated in many areas under this
government: they claim to believe in devolving powers and responsibilities to local councils
but do so in a way that places extra burdens on us without the appropriate funding to cover
them.

5. Councillor Iain Simpson
To: Councillor Tim Briggs

Page 13

Housing Bill
Given that the Housing Bill is currently undergoing defeat after defeat in the House of Lords,
will the Leader of the Opposition Group end his indifference to this piece of legislation and
finally come out against a Bill which does nothing for those aspiring to buy a home and
would be disastrous for council housing throughout this borough?
Party: Labour
Answer:
Only a council with councillors who vote as they are ordered to, rather than according to their
own consciences, would see amendments to parliamentary Bills as ‘defeats’, rather than a
proper and useful constitutional process.
Those aspiring to buy a home
The whole point of the Bill is to enable housebuilding across the UK, not to provide even
more resources to councils like Lambeth that have shown themselves to be poor
housebuilders and even worse landlords.
This Labour administration either concentrates on high-end unaffordable developments in
Vauxhall, or council housing, but nothing for the majority of people in between.
The Housing and Planning Bill will make it easier for local communities and builders to
develop houses, and will reform the planning system to do that. Annual housing supply in
England amounted to 170,690 net additional dwellings in 2014-15, which is a 25 per cent
increase in net additional dwellings from 2013-14. The Bill once enacted should help
increase those numbers significantly.
Council housing throughout this borough
Labour nationally has a poor record on building council houses. More council houses have
been built in the UK since 2010 under the Tories than under Labour in the previous 13 years.
As a result the Labour administration in Lambeth is desperate to prove itself a housebuilder,
but it does so by demolishing people’s homes without a mandate, in order to build new flats.
Since Myatt’s Field is the only example we have to go by, these will be poorly constructed,
badly managed and unaffordable for residents, and taking away the right to buy means that
tenants end up stuck and unable to move.
Cllr Simpson could spend time scrutinising the disaster of capital works and major repairs in
Lambeth carried out by Lambeth Council and its suppliers, as a result of contracts designed
under the Labour administration which have proved wasteful, ineffective and lacking in
accountability.

Page 14

6. Councillor Sally Prentice
To: Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Business and Culture - Councillor Jack Hopkins
Obesity and Physical Fitness
What action is the Council taking to reduce obesity and improve physical fitness among the
Lambeth population?
Party: Labour
Answer:
Active Lambeth Plan – the Lambeth Physical Activity and Sports Plan 2015 to 2020 was
agreed by Cabinet in October 2015. The plan which was developed with a range of partners
including Public Health sets out our approach to improve community health and wellbeing by
increasing participation in physical activity and sport. The plan consists of 5 steps to physical
activity and sport:
1. Identify those in need
2. Define each individual’s physical activity and barriers to participation
3. Provide a physical activity and sports programme over 10 to 12 weeks to meet
individual needs
4. Provide an exit route pathway for continued once per week participation
5. Follow up with participants at 3, 6 and 12 months to evaluate success and maintain
participation.
The plan has identified a number of priority areas including Women and Girls, people with
disabilities and older adults.
As a first step to the delivery of the Active Lambeth Plan the Council has a 3 years partnership
project, partly funded by Sport England that will focus on 14 to 25 year old females. The
project is aimed at increasing participation in areas of low participation and high deprivation
and for those at risk of preventable health conditions. The value of the project including in
kind support is over £600,000. This is the first project in a programme of commissioned activity
planned over the next few years.
The Public Health, Staying Healthy portfolio of services currently commission a range of
services and programmes which aim to reduce obesity, improve people’s awareness of diet
and nutrition and improve people’s physical fitness.
The Lambeth Early Intervention and Prevention Service (LEIPS) is commissioned to deliver
an integrated Early Intervention and Prevention service to people with identified risk factors
associated with cardiovascular disease (CVD) including low levels of physical activity. Within
LEIPS there is a 12 week structured community based adult physical activity and weight
management programme for clients to access who are at increased risk of CVD and other
associated condition. This is called the Healthy Heart Healthy Weight programme. The
programme consists of a 1 our physical activity session combined with group based healthy

Page 15

eating workshops which are client centred focusing on practical supportive approaches to
help participants to understand, change their behaviour and thereby manage their weight
and health condition.
There are also two structured community based physical activity programmes, otherwise
known as Exercise on Referral. One of these programmes aims to deliver physical activity
sessions along with self-care skills training and can provide a step down service from
Pulmonary and Cardiac rehab to ensure that clients maintain positive changes. There is also
a separate Exercise on Referral service available for those adults who are identified as not
meeting the national recommendations for physical activity and have a diagnosed common
mental illness, such as mile to moderate depression.
The Council also commissions personalised individual support in the form of Health Trainers.
Health Trainers will work with the individual on a one: one basis to support them to realise
their health goals, which are frequently around weight loss and improving physical activity
and fitness levels.

7. Councillor Michelle Agdomar
To: Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care – Councillor Jackie Meldrum
Social Care and Housing
We know many of our tenants are vulnerable and elderly people. Of our adults eligible for
social care, how many are living in Lambeth Housing as tenants or leaseholders? Are similar
figures available from our registered social landlords?
Party: Labour
Answer:
Providing adult social care for older and disabled residents in Lambeth is one of the council’s
key statutory responsibilities – these services account for more than a quarter of our net
expenditure every year and we provide packages of care for between 4,000 and 5,000
residents each year. People want to live in their own homes and play a part in the Lambeth
community. To reduce the number of people living in institutions making sure that suitable
housing is available is vital.
The data and information collated by Lambeth’s Housing Management shows us how many
tenants identify themselves as ‘vulnerable’, however, this does not tell us whether they
would meet the threshold to be eligible for social care services. Out of 23,422 Lambeth
council tenants, 1,807 (8%) have told us that they have some form of vulnerability or
disability. For 5,057 of tenancies (22%), the main tenant is over 65 years old. Of tenants
reporting a disability over 60% have physical disabilities.
There is a great deal more to be done to integrate this information from Housing
Management with the data we hold on adults receiving social care services, as there are
separate data recording systems. These are being upgraded and an integrated approach
will help the council identify and support vulnerable residents better. In November 2015

Page 16

Cabinet agreed a Task Force to look at this issues. Further work will be needed with our
Housing Association partners.

8. Councillor David Amos
To: Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Business and Culture - Councillor Jack Hopkins
Business Growth in the Borough
Can the Cabinet Member provide an update on business growth in the borough?
Specifically:
 The number of active enterprises in Lambeth compared to i) London ii) England?
 The rate of growth of these enterprises since 2010 compared to i) London ii) England
 Business survival rates in Lambeth compared to i) London ii) England
 The rate of business ‘births compared to i) London ii) England
Party: Labour
Answer:
The total number of enterprises registered in Lambeth increased by 84% from 2010-2015,
compared to just 24% across London (see figure 1). Lambeth saw the highest rate of growth
for any London borough during this period.

Figure 1: Index of active enterprises (2010 = 100)
200
175
150
Lambeth
125

London
England

100
75
50
2010

2011

2012

Count of active enterprise for 2009 to 2014
2009
2010
Lambeth
11,360
11,315
London
402,315
413,260
United Kingdom
2,341,900 2,351,425

2013

2014

2011
2012
11,480
14,820
421,185
439,405
2,342,595 2,372,960

2015

2013
2014
17,925
20,900
466,135
500,825
2,448,745 2,550,890

Page 17

Source: ONS Business Demography,
http://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/business/activitysizeandlocation/datasets/b
usinessdemographyreferencetable
Business survival rates in Lambeth compared to i) London ii) England
Lambeth
London
United
Kingdom

Lambeth
London
United
Kingdon

Births
1,445
50,575

1-year survival
1,345
44,665

1-year %
93.1
88.3

2-year survival
1,050
35,635

2-year %
72.7
70.5

236,030

214,410

90.8

174,165

73.8

3-year
4-year
5-year
survival
3-year %
survival
4-year %
survival
5-year %
840
58.1
665
46
560
38.8
28435
56.2
23125
45.7
19545
38.6
140695

59.6

115320

48.9

98480

9. Councillor Louise Nathanson
To: Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Business and Culture - Councillor Jack
Hopkins
Clapham Common Events Re-investment
Given Lambeth's commitment to re-invest a third of all income from events held on Clapham
Common, can they clarify how much revenue has been made from events over the last year,
and how much has been spent during that time on new projects, that were not already
planned and costed before making this commitment?
Party: Conservative
Answer:
The forthcoming Events Strategy looks at how income is reinvested into the parks and
Commons and we look forward to this being presented shortly. Our position in Lambeth is
already unique in that we reinvest in our parks and green spaces through the Environmental
Impact Fee. The strategy has been developed in consultation with local parks groups.
In 2015/16, for Clapham Common we gave £81,224 from events EIF income which goes
towards local community projects for the Common.
The events strategy will strengthen this reinvestment so that local residents can see the
benefit from local events. The events income is not tied in to specific commitments because
it will vary according to venues and times of the year. However it is a positive contribution to

41.7

Page 18

local open spaces and one that we welcome and we look forward to strengthening this
commitment through a new events strategy.

10. Councillor Adrian Garden
To: Deputy Leader of the Council (Investment and Partnerships) – Councillor Paul
McGlone
Your New Town Hall Project Update
Can the Deputy Leader provide an update on progress for the Your New Town Hall project?
Party: Labour
Answer:
On 21 April 2016 the Development Agreement with Muse Developments became
Unconditional for the first phase of development. This means that all the necessary
conditions to allow development had been achieved and a price representing value for
money for the Council had been concluded. We are now therefore in contract with Muse for
the construction of our new Civic Building on Town Hall Parade and refurbishment of the
Town Hall, and demolition in preparation has already commenced.
Internal strip out (including asbestos) has been completed and the external demolition has
commenced on 1-7 Town Hall Parade. Access to Buckner Road is now restricted and
controlled by on-site security – there is an agreed access route for the Electric nightclub to
ensure business continuity. The Resident Liaison office (appointed by Morgan Sindall) has
now started and will act as the central point of contact between the local residents and the
contractor in conjunction with the Council’s press team.
Muse is contracted to complete the main front part of the Town Hall, where the public and
community spaces will be, towards the end of 2017. The Civic Building, including the
Customer Service Centre and the main office accommodation, and the rear of the Town Hall,
will be available for occupation in spring 2018. It is following this that the full savings in
excess of £4.5m per year will be achieved by the Council.
Muse is still working to conclude a construction price representing best value for the
residential accommodation on the Hambrook and Ivor House sites in what remains a difficult
construction market, but expect to start construction on those later this year. Muse is held to
paying a minimum price to the Council and must start within a year. Construction of homes
on the Olive Morris House site will begin after we have moved into the new accommodation
and vacated the site in 2018.

11. Councillor Tim Briggs
To: Deputy Leader for Finance and Investment – Councillor Paul McGlone
Lambeth’s long-term economic plan

Page 19

Under left-wing administrations in Lambeth, poverty, poor services and a lack of local
opportunities have become entrenched. Lambeth is now the 29th poorest borough in the
whole of the UK, despite having the largest construction site in Europe within its borders.
In 2015 the Conservative government was given a fresh mandate to carry out its long-term
economic plan and repair broken Britain. The UK is now one the fastest growing developed
nations, to the benefit of all UK and Lambeth residents.
What is the Labour administration’s long–term economic plan in Lambeth, or will it just
continue to not listen and blame central government for its own failings, whilst closing
libraries and turning them into gyms, trying to pedestrianise busy junctions and demolishing
people’s homes?
Party: Conservative
Answer:
Once again the leader of the Conservative Group continues to cheerlead for the huge cuts
his party have imposed on the people of Lambeth while pretending to care about their
impact. Despite being a borough with significant challenges, Lambeth has received one of
the largest cuts to its budget of any council in the country, with a 56% reduction in core
government funding. In February, the Government found an extra £300 million to help some
councils; but astonishingly 83% of this went to Conservative councils, which have already
suffered the least cuts. Not a penny of that money was given to Lambeth.
Despite these cuts, this administration has protected hundreds of vital public services that
residents rely on. Despite rising demand and falling funding, we continue to improve the
services we provide, with rising resident’s satisfaction, greater value for money in every area
and increasing income from areas like collection rates. These improved services and our
continued protection of the services our most vulnerable residents rely on, is testament to
our values of fairness and ambition for all, in contrast to the unfair Tory dogma of austerity.
This administration has a proud record of encouraging investment and growth in the borough
and of ensuring that investment is felt fairly by all residents. Since 2010, Lambeth has the
highest rate of growth for new businesses of any borough in London. In recent years, we
have embarked on:


An ambitious programme of regeneration across the London Plan designated
opportunity areas in Waterloo and Vauxhall which has led to the implementation of
for example, the redevelopment of the Shell building, now on site; two new hotels for
Park Plaza, and a third in Vauxhall; new homes being built on the embankment,
including affordable housing; and agreement from Transport for London to invest
£50m in the Borough to remove the Vauxhall gyratory following on from £45m being
spent to upgrade Vauxhall station and the implementation of the northern line
extension.



The redevelopment of council buildings in Brixton as part of the Your New Town Hall
project, reducing office costs, investing in the heart of Brixton and developing new
homes, including hundreds of new affordable homes. Further regeneration is
occurring with the redevelopment of Brixton Central and the delivery of 300 new
homes at Somerleyton Road by the Council.

Page 20



The adoption of the Local Plan in September of 2015, clearly setting out the
opportunities and the requirements of the Borough for investors including robust
planning policies in relation to affordable housing.



Progress towards the delivery of Business Improvement Districts across every town
centre, with anticipated success in West Norwood last this year. Lambeth has the
most BiDs of any other London Borough.

Going forward the focus is on attracting even more new business into the borough and
growing existing businesses through business support and development including promoting
the possibility of affordable work space. This activity follows a period of investment in culture
and leisure with the development of 3 new leisure centres in Clapham, West Norwood and
Streatham, the refurbishment of town centre libraries in Brixton and Streatham, a new library
at Clapham, the construction of the Black Cultural Archives, and the delivery of public open
space improvements including Jubilee Gardens.
Notwithstanding the challenges of the severe cuts in public sector funding, the council is
maximising its resources and assets to improve the quality of life for residents in the
Borough.

12. Councillor Annie Gallop
To: Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport – Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite
Loughborough Junction Steering Group
Can the Cabinet Member update us on the progress of the Loughborough Junction Steering
Group, set up between residents, community groups and the Council following the road
closures at Loughborough Junction?
Party: Labour
Answer:
The Loughborough Junction Steering Group has been running for five months and includes
representatives from local businesses, ward councillors, Loughborough Junction Action
Group, Loughborough Estate Board Loughborough Estate TRA and LJ Road Madness.
These groups have worked very constructively together and have now agreed a concept
design for the junction area. This is based on a shared vision to improve the public space in
Loughborough Junction, make it a safer and more pleasant place to live and help the area
become a destination in its own right.
We are now looking at further engagement and consultation options to cast the net wider
amongst the rest of the community. A schedule of consultation events will follow in the
coming weeks.

13. Councillor Paul Gadsby
To: Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport – Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite

Page 21

Parking Stress Review
Can the Cabinet Member provide an update on the parking stress review currently taking place
in the borough, particularly the timelines for the next phase in Vassall?
Party: Labour
Answer:
The parking feasibility study is based around two main stages of reporting.
An interim report, which will be produced in July 2016, is intended to focus on the nonControlled Parking Zone (CPZ) areas of Vassall / Coldharbour and Brixton Hill wards. This will
include an assessment of the existing parking situation, along with a full survey, design and
costings relating to the implementation of potential new CPZs in these areas.
The main report, which will be produced in November 2016, will incorporate a comprehensive
review of the parking situation for the rest of the borough, and may include recommendations
to change the geographical boundaries of existing zones and / or the hours of operation, in
order to address existing and future parking issues and reduce confusion for residents and
visitors. The work will also include detailed on-street parking surveys of many non-CPZ areas
in the borough, which will inform a priority list of new CPZ schemes to be taken forward to
public consultation.

14. Councillor Jack Holborn
To: Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Business and Culture - Councillor Jack Hopkins
Can the Cabinet Member provide reassurance to residents in Herne Hill about the Council’s
plans for the future of Carnegie Library?
Party: Labour
Answer:
We are keen to reassure residents that Carnegie Library will reopen in early 2017 and will
remain free and available for the whole community. It has not closed permanently. However,
the scale of funding cuts that the council faces under this government means that we are not
able to retain the service exactly as it is. In order to avoid Carnegie closing permanently, as
hundreds of libraries have done up and down the country since 2010, the nature of the services
there will change.
The re-opened Carnegie building will have a new gym in the currently unused basement to
help fund the running of the re-opened library and to help cover the costs of maintaining and
running the building. The ground & first floors of Carnegie will be used as community space,
including the re-opened library, as well as other activities such as space for local businesses
or a cafe. The building including the library will be open for up to 70 hours per week an

Page 22

increase from the current 36. The building will be fully staffed at all times and dedicated
Lambeth library staff will be on site regularly.
The Herne Hill community has expressed an interest in taking community ownership of the
building and the council continues to support these ambitions. The Carnegie Community
Trust, which has been working on a business plan for the building for a number of years, has
submitted an expression of interest for asset transfer. The Friends of Carnegie Library has
also indicated an interest in taking over the building. Any bid for an asset transfer will go
through a thorough formal process. The council has never had - and will never support plans to sell the Carnegie building.
There will be a local exhibition shortly to include more detailed floor plans as well options
and opportunities for rest of building. This will be an opportunity for local residents to see the
plans, provide feedback and get involved in the discussion about the future of the building.
A letter to residents about the Carnegie Library and other information about all of the libraries
is available on the Council’s website: http://www.lambeth.gov.uk/lambeth-libraries-faq

Page 23

Agenda Item 9.a

Licensing Committee 26 April 2016
Council 18 May 2016
The Gambling Act 2005: Review of Lambeth Statement of Principles 2016-19
Wards: All
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director for Neighbourhoods and Growth: Sue Foster
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Healthier and Stronger Communities: Councillor Jim Dickson
Contact for enquiries:
cbutcher@lambeth.gov.uk
Claire Butcher, Commissioning Officer, Community Safeguarding, 020 7926 0024

Report summary
Under the Gambling Act 2005, the Council is required to publish a statement of principles
every three years setting out how it will regulate gambling premises in the borough. Lambeth’s
existing Gambling Act 2005 statement of principles (2013-2016) expired on 30 January 2016
and is now due for review and renewal. At this stage, it is proposed to make no fundamental
changes and simply re-adopt the current statement of principles with some small revisions,
effective from 20 June 2016.
The statutory guidance governing the scope and content of gambling policies changed
significantly in September 2015, and during the next 12 months it is intended to undertake a
more comprehensive review of Lambeth’s gambling policy which will allow time for the content
of the new guidance to be considered and a new local draft statement of principles to be
developed.
Finance summary
The review of the statement of principles is funded from existing budgets, and there are no
further financial implications arising from the recommendations of this report.
Recommendations
Licensing Committee
(1)

That the Council resolves not to issue Casino Premises Licences for three years
commencing from 20 June 2016, subject to any further resolution as provided for
by Section 166 of the Gambling Act 2005.

(2)

That the draft Statement of Principles appended to this report be recommended
to full Council on 18 May 2016 for formal adoption and approval.

1

Page 24
Council
(1)

That Council resolves not to issue Casino Premises Licences for three years
commencing from 20 June 2016, subject to any further resolution as provided for
by Section 166 of the Gambling Act 2005.

(2)

To adopt the Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Principles appended to this report.

2

Page 25
1.
1.1

Context
The Gambling Act 2005 introduced a new licensing regime for gaming and betting
administered through a combination of the Gambling Commission and local licensing
authorities.

1.2

The Act regulates the following sectors:

Arcades

Betting

Bingo

Casinos

Gambling software

Gaming machines

Lotteries

Remote gambling

1.3

The Gambling Commission is responsible for licensing operators and individuals
involved in providing the above activities.

1.4

Licensing authorities are responsible for:





1.5

Issuing gambling operators with premises licenses
Issuing gambling operators with permits (which allow low stakes gambling in
venues which are not primarily for gambling)
Registering societies – allowing them to hold small lotteries
Compliance and enforcement of the Gambling Act 2005 locally

In carrying out their functions under the Gambling Act 2005, particularly with regard
to premises licenses and temporary use notices, all licensing authorities must aim to
permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as they think it:





In accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling
Commission
In accordance with the guidance for licensing authorities issued by the
Gambling Commission
Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives
In accordance with the authority’s statement of licensing principles

1.6

Licensing authorities are required to review and publish, every three years, a
statement of the principles which they propose to apply when exercising their
licensing functions. This authority’s statement of principles (The London Borough of
Lambeth Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Principles) was first published in January
2007. It has been subject to several reviews and amendments to reflect changes to
policy and guidance over the years. The current version of the statement of
principles (2013-2016) was approved by Full Council in January 2013 and is now due
for review and renewal.

2.
2.1

Proposal and Reasons
In September 2015 the Gambling Commission published the fifth edition of its
guidance to local licensing authorities. The revised guidance includes a range of
amendments which seek to:

3

Page 26

2.2



Reinforce the importance of partnership working between licensing authorities
and local businesses to mitigate risks to the licensing objectives



Reflect changes to the social responsibility provisions within the
Commission’s Licence conditions and codes of practice (LCCP)



Provide guidance on the requirement for all premises operators to conduct a
local risk assessment in order to understand the risks associated with the
areas they have, or wish to have, a gambling premises



Promote local partnership working between licensing authorities and local
gambling operators to facilitate a coordinated approach to local issues



Provide greater clarity about the range of powers afforded to licensing
authorities to manage local gambling regulation, balanced by the statutory aim
to permit gambling subject to reasonable consistency with the licensing
objectives

The changes contained in the Gambling Commission’s guidance are considered to
be crucial to the revision of this authority’s own statement of principles. In order to
allow time to develop a new local draft statement of principles which incorporates
these new considerations, it is proposed to take a two staged approach:
a)

Conduct a short formal consultation to re-adopt the current Gambling Act
2005 Statement of Principles (2013-16). This consultation ended on 17 April
2016.

b)

Start work on a comprehensive review of the authority’s gambling policy,
taking account of changes introduced in the fifth edition of the Gambling
Commission guidance to local licensing authorities (published September
2015). This will include development of a new local draft statement of
principles during 2016, which will be reported back to Licensing Committee
before going out to full public consultation in January 2017. The final revised
policy document will then be presented to the Committee and Full Council for
adoption in May 2017.

Revisions to the content of the statement of principles for purposes of accuracy
2.3

A copy of the draft Lambeth Gambling Act 2005 statement of principles 2016-19 is
attached at Appendix B. A summary of the proposed changes is attached at
Appendix A.

2.4

At this stage, the only changes that have been made to the content of the 2013-16
statement of principles are those that have been necessary to deal with inaccuracies
that have developed since the original publication of the statement of principles.
These are:


‘About Lambeth’ commentary updated with information from the latest ‘State
of the Borough’ report (2014) and reference to previous Corporate Plan
outcomes deleted.

4

Page 27




Inclusion of the ‘Regulators Code’ within the licensing authority’s enforcement
principles (Part 1).
Dates updated as necessary throughout.
Contact details within Appendix C updated.

2.5.

All other content of the 2013-16 statement of principles is left unchanged as this point
in time.

2.6.

It is proposed that the current ‘no casino’ resolution that is in the existing statement
remains.

3.
3.1

Finance
Costs associated with the review of the statement of principles and consultation
process will be funded from existing budgets.

4.
4.1

Legal and Democracy
Section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 (the Act) requires the Council to prepare and
publish triennially a statement of the principles it proposes to apply in exercising its
function under the Act (a document commonly known as a Gambling Policy or
Statement of Gambling Policy – hereinafter referred to as the Gambling Policy). A
licensing authority may review and revise their Gambling Policy within each three
year cycle.

4.2

Prior to publishing its Gambling Policy, the Council must undertake the statutory
consultation as provided by section 349(3) of the Act and Regulations made under it.
This requires that the Council consult with: the chief officer of police; one or more
persons who represent the interests of gambling businesses in the borough and one
or more persons who represent the interests of persons who are likely to be affected
by the exercise of the Council’s functions under the Gambling Act.

4.3

Regulations 4 to 6 of the Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing Authority Policy Statement)
(England & Wales) Regulations 2006 specifies the requirements for the content and
form of the Gambling Policy. Regulation 7 specifies the steps that must be taken post
adoption of the Gambling Policy and before it takes effect, namely:
7(1) Before a statement……comes into effect, the authority that prepared it must—
(a)

publish the statement or revision in accordance with paragraph (2); and

(b)

advertise the publication of the statement or revision by publishing a notice in
accordance with paragraphs (3) and (4).

(2)

The statement or revision must be published by being made available for a
period of at least 4 weeks before the date on which it will come into effect—

(a)

on the authority's internet website; and

(b)

for inspection by the public at reasonable times in one or both of the following
places—

(i)

one or more public libraries situated in the area covered by the statement or
revision;
5

Page 28
(ii)

other premises situated in that area.

(3)

The notice referred to in paragraph (1)(b) shall specify—

(a)

the date on which the statement or revision will be published;

(b)

the date on which the statement or revision will come into effect;

(c)

the internet address where the statement or revision will be published in
accordance with paragraph (2)(a); and

(d)

the address of the library or other premises at which the statement or revision
may be inspected in accordance with paragraph (2)(b).

(4)

That notice shall be published no later than the first day on which the statement
or revision is published in accordance with paragraph (2)—

(a)

on the authority's internet website, and

(b)

in or on one or more of the following places—

(i)

a local newspaper circulating in the area covered by the statement;

(ii)

a local newsletter, circular, or similar document circulating in the area covered by
the statement;

(iii)

a public notice board in or near the principal office of the authority;

(iv) a public notice board on the premises of public libraries in the area covered by
the statement.
In summary, the above specifies that a minimum of 4 weeks is required between
publication of the Gambling Policy and its coming into effect.
4.4

Section 166 of the Act provides that a Licensing Authority may resolve not to issue
Casino Premises Licences (a No Casino Resolution) and to specify the date upon
which that resolution takes effect. This decision must be taken by Council and
published in the authority’s Gambling Policy. This report recommends that the Council
resolves to pass a No Casino Resolution. In making this decision, the Council may
take into account any principle or matter and not just the licensing objectives. The
licensing objectives in respect of the Gambling Act 2005 are:
• Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime;
• Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way;
• Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed
or exploited by gambling.

4.5

Paragraph 5 refers to the statutory consultation undertaken for the purposes of this
report and the persons and bodies consulted. The following principles of consultation
were set out in a recent High Court case: First, a consultation had to be commenced
at a time when proposals were still at a formative stage. Second, those consulted had
6

Page 29
to be provided with accurate and sufficient information and reasons for any proposal
to permit intelligent consideration; with adequate time given for the consulting party to
respond and for those responses to be considered. Third, the product of consultation
must be conscientiously taken into account. Overall, the process of consultation had
to be effective and looked at as a whole it had to be fair. Fairness might require
consultation not only upon the preferred option, but also upon discarded or alternative
ones. The Council is obliged to take account of any representations made and any
material objections received will need to be reported back to the decision maker. All
representations received must be properly considered in the light of administrative law
principles, Human Rights law and the relevant statutory principles.
4.6

Under the Council’s constitution (page 32, Part 2 –Section 1), the Licensing
Committee’s remit includes the power: “To exercise the functions, powers and duties
of the Council in relation to all licensing matters, as required by statute”. Pursuant to
the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000,
the Council’s Gambling Policy is required to be part of the Council’s policy framework
and adoption of that Policy falls to be made by full Council.

4.7

Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 sets out the public sector equality duty, i.e. that
all public bodies are under an obligation to have ‘due regard’ to eliminating unlawful
discrimination, advancing equality and fostering good relations in the contexts of age,
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, marriage and civil
partnership, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

4.8

Section 149 (1) (b) of the Act states that: a public authority must, in the exercise of its
functions, have due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share
it. Part of the duty to have “due regard” where there is disproportionate impact will be
to take steps to mitigate the impact and the Council must demonstrate that this has
been done, and/or justify the decision, on the basis that it is a proportionate means of
achieving a legitimate aim.

4.9

The Equality Duty must be complied with before and at the time that a particular
policy is under consideration or decision is taken – that is, in the development of
policy options, and in making a final decision. A public body cannot satisfy the
Equality Duty by justifying a decision after it has been taken.

5.

Consultation and co-production

5.1

Section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 specifies those persons and groups with
whom we must consult for the purposes of this report.

5.2

Notification of this authority’s intention to seek to readopt the 2013-2016 statement of
principles was provided to the following relevant parties:
 The chief officer of police
 One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of
persons carrying on gambling in the authority’s area, including the following
responsible authorities identified under the Act: the Gambling Commission,
HM Revenue and Customs, the London Fire Brigade, and Lambeth’s
Planning, Neighbourhood Enforcement, Community Safety and Children’s
Services
7

Page 30
 One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of
persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s
functions, including:
- The individuals and organisations who hold Premises Licences issued by
the authority under the Act
- The organisations who have applied for or hold gaming machine permits
for multiple or high-profile premises within the borough
- Representative bodies within the gambling and leisure industry
- All elected ward councillors
5.3

In addition to the above an online questionnaire was hosted on the council’s website
for the duration of the consultation period.

5.4

There was one response to the consultation, received from the Chair of Lambeth
Safer Neighbourhood Board. The Board support the two stage approach to the
review of Lambeth’s gambling policy, and are keen to be involved in the wider review
of the policy later in the year. The Board also suggest that consideration be given to
whether in the interests of overall crime prevention and reduction in the borough, an
“advisory” condition of licensing should be that owners/managers of premises
licenced for gambling should be registered with the borough's Business Crime
Reduction Partnership (BCRP) and participate in the intelligence sharing
arrangements of the BCRP. It is recommended that these considerations are
retained for the time being and included in the wider review of gambling policy
scheduled for later in the year; this will allow time for the necessary research and
analysis to be undertaken. The consultation response is appended to the report
(Appendix C)

6.
6.1

Risk management
It is a legal requirement to review the policy.

7.
7.1

Equalities impact assessment
An equalities impact assessment was carried out for the current statement of
principles and a further assessment will be carried out as part of the wider review and
development of a new statement of principles during 2016.

8.
8.1

Community safety
One of the objectives in the Gambling Act is to prevent gambling from being a source
of crime, being associated with crime or being used to support crime.

9.

Organisational implications
None.

10.

Timetable for implementation

10.1
Proposal to readopt the Lambeth
Gambling Act 2005 Statement of
Principles 2013-2016 reported to
Licensing Committee, pending a full
review of the borough’s gambling policy
and development of a new statement of

15 March 2016

8

Page 31
principles in light of recent Gambling
Commission guidance to local licensing
authorities
Short public consultation to readopt the
2013-16 statement of principles

21 March – 17 April 2016

Draft 2016-19 statement of principles to
Licensing Committee with results of
consultation

26 April 2016

Recommendation to readopt the current
statement of principles (with minor
amendments) and final version of 201619 statement to Full Council for approval

18 May 2016

2016-2019 statement of principles takes
effect

20 June 2016

Comprehensive review of the authority’s
gambling policy, taking account of
changes introduced in the fifth edition of
the Gambling Commission guidance to
local licensing authorities (published
September 2015). Development of a
new local draft statement of principles.

Autumn/ Winter 2016

Consultation on revised Gambling Act
2005 statement of principles

January – March 2017

Final version of revised statement to Full
Council for approval

May 2017

9

Page 32
Audit trail
Consultation
This is important as it shows that consultation has been undertaken in the preparation of the report
and provides a quick reference point for specific comments. It is important that officers remember to
liaise with relevant councillors such as the Cabinet Member and the relevant Ward Members.
Name/Position
Lambeth
Date Sent Date
Comments in
directorate/department
Received
para:
or partner
Sue Foster
Strategic Director for
12.04.16
12.04.16
Neighbourhoods &
Growth
Rachel Sharpe
Director, Housing &
12.04.16
14.04.16
Communities
Martin Crump
Corporate Resources:
12.04.16
15.04.16
Para 3
Financial Planning and
Management
Jean-Marc Moocarme, Legal Enabling: Integrated
12.04.16
14.04.16
Para 4
Services
Support
Cllr Jane Edbrooke
Cabinet Member:
12.04.16
12.04.16
Neighbourhoods
Cllr Mohammed Seedat
On behalf of Cabinet
14.04.16
15.04.16
Member: Healthier and
Stronger Communities
Cllr Jim Dickson
Cabinet Member:
15.04.16
Healthier and Stronger
Communities
Report history
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
11.02.16
Report deadline
26.04.16
Date final report sent
18.04.16
Report no.
/15-16
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
No
accompanying report?
Key decision report
No
Background information
Gambling Act 2005
Gambling Commission Guidance to licensing
authorities (5th edition, September 2015)
London Borough of Lambeth Gambling Act
2005 Statement of Principles 2013 – 2016
Appendices

Appendix A: Summary of proposed changes
Appendix B: London Borough of Lambeth Draft
Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Principles
2016 – 2019
Appendix C: Consultation response

10

Page 33

Appendix A – Gambling Act 2005: Review of Lambeth Statement of Principles 2016-19
Summary of proposed changes
Para

Section Title

Details of changes

-

Front cover

Updated contact details for Licensing

-

About Lambeth

Updated statistics and commentary

-

About this document

Updated dates and version number

-

General Principles

Delete reference to Lambeth Corporate Plan 2011-14

1.21

Enforcement

Inclusion of the Regulators Code (issued by the Better
Regulation Delivery Office of the Department for Business
Innovation and Skills) within enforcement principles

-

Appendix C – Contact
Details

Updated to reflect current contact details for Licensing and
responsible authorities

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 35

London Borough of Lambeth

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles
2016-2019

Licensing Section
London Borough of Lambeth
International House
6 Canterbury Crescent
London
SW9 7QE

Page 36

Contents
About this document ......................................................................................................................2
Part 1 – General Principles ...........................................................................................................3
The Licensing Objectives ...............................................................................................................4
Responsible Authorities.................................................................................................................4
Interested Parties ..........................................................................................................................4
Licensing Authority Functions .......................................................................................................5
Delegation of Functions………………………………………………………………………………….7
Exchange of Information………………………………………………………………………………...8
Enforcement.……………………………………………………………………………………………...8
Gaming Machines………………………………………………………………………………………..8
Part 2 - Premises Licences..........................................................................................................10
Conditions....................................................................................................................................11
Location of Premises...................................................................................................................12
Division of Premises and Primary Usage .....................................................................................13
Door Supervisors .........................................................................................................................15
Provisional Statements ................................................................................................................15
Reviews........................................................................................................................................16
Categories of Premises Licence ..................................................................................................17
Casino Premises Licences .....................................................................................................................17
Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences...............................................................................................17
Betting (Other) Premises Licences .........................................................................................................17
Betting (Track) Premises Licences .........................................................................................................18
Bingo Premises Licences .......................................................................................................................19
Family Entertainment Centre Premises Licences ..................................................................................19

Part 3 – Permits and Notices .......................................................................................................20
Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits & Notifications .................................................... 20
Club Gaming Permits & Club Machine Permits............................................................................21
Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits ..............................................................21
Prize Gaming Permits ..................................................................................................................22
Temporary Use Notices ...............................................................................................................23
Occasional Use Notices ...............................................................................................................23
Travelling Fairs.............................................................................................................................23
Part 4 – Lotteries ......................................................................................................................... 25
Free Prize Draws & Skill Competitions ........................................................................................25
Appendix A – Map of Lambeth ...................................................................................................27
Appendix B – Consultation .........................................................................................................28
Appendix C – Contact Details .....................................................................................................29

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-1-

Page 37
About Lambeth1
Nearly a third of a million people live in Lambeth – at least 310,000. Lambeth is in south London,
between Wandsworth and Southwark, and has one of the largest geographic areas of any inner
London borough. It has several distinctive neighbourhoods including Waterloo, Brixton, Clapham,
Streatham and Norwood. There are some predominantly commercial areas with a higher
concentration of commercial and entertainment premises, including parts of Streatham, Clapham,
Brixton, Vauxhall and Waterloo.
Largely residential, it is one of the most densely populated places in the country, with over 100 people
living in each hectare, more than twice the London population density. It has a complex social and
ethnic mix, with large African and Portuguese populations, and is an important focus for the black
Caribbean population.
Lambeth has a relatively young age profile. Although it is a largely residential borough, it is a
destination for young working age people, rather than families. If trends continue, Lambeth’s
population is projected to grow by just over 1% per year for the next five years, and the borough will
continue to have a majority of young working age people (20-44).
Like many London boroughs, Lambeth has areas of affluence and areas of deprivation, often side by
side. The latest deprivation data (2015) ranks Lambeth as the 8th most deprived borough in London
and 22nd most deprived in England.
A map showing the main areas of Lambeth is provided at Appendix A.

About this document
This document is the Statement of Principles for the London Borough of Lambeth.
Licensing authorities are required by section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 to publish a statement
of the principles that they propose to apply when exercising their functions relating to the regulation
of most gambling activities. This statement must be published on at least one occasion prior to
every successive three-year period. The statement may also be reviewed from “time to time” and
any proposed revisions made subject to consultation, prior to publication.
This is the fourth version of Lambeth’s statement, and will have effect from 20 June 2016 to 20 June
2019.
In producing the final Statement of Principles, the licensing authority has had regard to the
licensing objectives of the Gambling Act 2005, the guidance issued by the Gambling Commission,
and any responses received from those consulted upon the policy. The London Borough of
Lambeth consulted widely upon this statement before finalising and publishing it. A list of those
persons and organisations consulted is provided at Appendix B.
The policy was approved at a meeting of the Council on the 18 May 2016 and was published via
our website at www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing.
All references within this document to the Gambling Commission’s guidance to licensing authorities
refer to the statutory document published by the Commission under section 25 of the Act, which is
available from www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensing_authorities.aspx
1

Lambeth’s ‘State of the Borough’ report provides further information on Lambeth and the demographics of its population -

www.lambeth.gov.uk/elections-and-council/residents-survey-and-state-of-the-borough /

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-2-

Page 38

Note (for inclusion in the event of the agreement of Full Council): At a meeting of Full Council on 18
May 2016 it was agreed to extend this statement of principles beyond the scheduled renewal date,
with only minor amendment for inaccuracies, in order to give sufficient time for the content of the
revised Gambling Commission Guidance (September 2015) to be considered in advance of a full
review of this statement.

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-3-

Page 39
Part 1 – General Principles
1.1 In carrying out their functions under the Gambling Act 2005 (‘the Act’), particularly with regard
to premises licences and temporary use notices, all licensing authorities must aim to permit the use
of premises for gambling so long as it is:





in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling Commission
in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission
reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives and
in accordance with the authority’s statement of principles

1.2 It should be noted that this policy statement will not override the right of any person to make an
application, make representations about an application, or apply for a review of a licence, as each
will be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the statutory requirements of the Act.
The sole exception to this rule is for Casino premises licences – as Lambeth has adopted a ‘nocasino’ resolution, the authority will not consider any application for a new casino premises licence.

The Licensing Objectives
1.3 In exercising most of their functions under the Act, licensing authorities must have regard to the
licensing objectives as set out in section 1 of the Act. The licensing objectives are:
 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime
or disorder or being used to support crime
 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way
 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by
gambling
1.4 The objectives do not include considerations in relation to public safety or public nuisance,
while the requirement in relation to children and vulnerable persons is explicitly to protect them
from being harmed or exploited by gambling, rather than from more general forms of harm or
exploitation. In its guidance to licensing authorities, the Commission advises that this will involve
“preventing them from taking part in gambling and for there to be restrictions on advertising so
that gambling products are not aimed at children or advertised in such a way that makes them
particularly attractive to children, excepting Category D gaming machines.

Responsible Authorities
1.5 Responsible authorities are bodies that must be notified of applications, and that are entitled to
make representations in relation to applications for, and in relation to premises licences. The
responsible authorities are:







the licensing authority in whose area the premises is situated
the Gambling Commission
the Metropolitan Police
the London Fire Brigade
London Borough of Lambeth Planning
HM Revenue and Customs.

The Licensing Authority designates Lambeth Children’s Services as competent to advise about the
protection of children from harm.

Interested Parties
1.6 Interested parties are people or businesses who can make representations about most
premises licence applications, or apply for a review of an existing licence. They are defined as:

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-4-

Page 40
 a person who lives sufficiently close to premises that are the subject of either an application
for a licence, or an existing licence, to be likely to be affected by the authorised or proposed
gambling activities there,
 a person who has business interests that might be affected by the authorised gambling
activities at premises that are the subject of either an application for a licence, or an existing
licence, or
 a person who represents other persons in either of these categories who could be a local
councillor, MP, residents or tenants associations.
1.7 The licensing authority is required by regulations to state the principles it will apply in exercising
its powers under the Gambling Act 2005 to determine whether a person is an interested party. In
Lambeth, each case will be decided upon its merits, and the licensing authority will not apply a rigid
rule to its decision making. It will consider the examples of relevant factors provided in the Gambling
Commission’s guidance to licensing authorities.
1.8 The Commission suggest that when considering what “sufficiently close to the premises”
means the following factors may be relevant:





the size of the premises;
the nature of the premises;
the distance of the premises from the location of the person making the representation;
the potential impact of the premises (number of customers, routes likely to be taken by
those visiting the establishment); and
 the circumstances of the complainant. This is not the personal characteristics of the
complainant, but the interests of the complainant that may be relevant to the distance from
the premises.
1.9 For example, it could be reasonable for an authority to conclude that “sufficiently close to be
likely to be affected” could have a different meaning for (a) a private resident (b) a residential
school for children with truanting problems and (c) a residential hostel for vulnerable adults.
1.10 When determining whether a person has business interests that be may be
affected the Commission suggest that factors that are likely to be relevant are;
 the size of the premises;
 the ‘catchment’ area of the premises (i.e. how far people travel to visit); and
 whether the person making the representation has business interests in that catchment
area that might be affected.
1.11 It will also consider the Gambling Commission's guidance that "business interests" should be
given the widest possible interpretation and include partnerships, charities, faith groups and
medical practices. Trade associations, trade unions, residents and tenants’ associations will
normally only be viewed as interested parties if they have a member who can be classed as an
interested party – i.e. who lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the
activities being applied for.
1.12 Persons whose business interests are within the same gambling sector as the subject of their
representation (or review application) will be expected to satisfy the licensing authority that their
representation (or application) is not made with the intent of limiting competition to their own
business, particularly given that the Act does not replicate the previous requirement for satisfaction
of a ‘demand test’. The licensing authority will disregard representations that are thought to be
vexatious, frivolous, or that will not influence the determination of the application.
1.13 Interested parties can be persons who are democratically elected such as councillors and
MP’s. No specific evidence of being asked to represent an interested person will be required as
long as the councillor / MP represents the ward likely to be affected. Other than these however,
Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-5-

Page 41
this authority will generally require written evidence that a person/body (e.g. an advocate or
relative) ‘represents’ someone who is an interested party. Members who are asked by an
interested party to represent them should not sit on the Sub-Committee considering that
application.

Licensing Authority Functions
1.14 Licensing authorities have responsibilities under the Act for:
 the licensing of premises where gambling activities are to take place, through the issue of
Premises Licences;
 the preliminary approval of proposed premises for gambling activities, through the issue of
Provisional Statements;
 the regulation of members’ clubs, commercial clubs and miners’ welfare institutes who wish
to undertake certain gaming activities, through Club Gaming Permits and/or Club Machine
Permits;
 the receipt of notifications and the issue of permits for the provision of gaming machines at
premises licensed to supply alcohol for consumption on the premises, under the
Licensing Act 2003;
 the regulation of family entertainment centre premises providing gaming machines;
 the regulation of prize gaming through the issue of permits;
 the receipt and endorsement of Temporary Use Notices, for infrequent gaming activities;
 the receipt of Occasional Use Notices, for infrequent betting activities;
 the registration of non-commercial societies for the provision of small society lotteries;
 the exchange of information with the Gambling Commission regarding details of licences,
permits and notices and enforcement issues (see section below on ‘exchange of
information’); and the maintenance of registers of the applications, licences, permits and
notices received and issued by the authority
 Maintain registers of the permits and licences that are issued under these functions
1.15 The licensing authority will not involve itself in any matters relating to the regulation of remote
gambling (for example, telephone betting or internet casino gaming), responsibility for which lies
with the Gambling Commission.
1.16 Duplication of other regulatory regimes, such as health and safety or fire safety, will be avoided
in so far as is possible. This authority will not consider whether a premise that is the subject of a
licensing application is likely to be awarded planning permission or building regulations approval, in
its consideration of that application. This authority will though, listen to, and consider carefully, any
concerns about conditions that are not able to be met by applicants or licence- holders due to
planning restrictions, should such a situation arise.

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-6-

Page 42
Delegation of Functions
1.17 The licensing authority will delegate its functions in accordance with the Act, as summarised
below:
Licensing (Sub-)
Matter to be dealt with
Council
Committee
Officers
Final approval of statement of principles



Resolution not to issue casino licences




Fee setting (where appropriate)
Application for a provisional statement

Where representations
have been received and
not withdrawn

Where representations
were not received or
have all been withdrawn

Application for a premises licence

Where representations
have been received and
not withdrawn

Where representations
were not received or
have all been withdrawn

Application for variation of a premises licence

Where representations
have been received and
not withdrawn

Where representations
were not received or
have all been withdrawn

Application for transfer of a premises licence

Where representations
have been received from
the relevant responsible
authorities

Where representations
were not received or
have all been withdrawn

Application for reinstatement of a premises
licence

Where representations
have been received from
the relevant responsible
authorities

Where representations
were not received or
have all been withdrawn

Consideration of application for review of a
premises licence



Initiation of review of a premises licence by
licensing authority



Application for club gaming / club machine
permits

Where objections have
been made and not
withdrawn

Cancellation of club gaming / club machine
permits



Where objections were
not made or have all
been withdrawn

Applications for other permits



Cancellation of licensed premises gaming
machine permits



Consideration of temporary use notice

Where objections have
been made and not
withdrawn

Where objections were
not made or have all
been withdrawn

Acknowledgment of occasional use notice



Registration of non-commercial societies for
small society lotteries



Revocation or cancellation of small society
lottery registrations



Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-7-

Page 43
Exchange of Information
1.18 The principle that this licensing authority applies is that it will act in accordance with the
provisions of the Gambling Act 2005 in its exchange of information, which includes the provision
that the Data Protection Act 1998 will not be contravened. The licensing authority will also have regard
to any guidance issued by the Gambling Commission to licensing authorities on this matter when it is
published, as well as any relevant regulations issued by the Secretary of State under the powers
provided in the Gambling Act 2005.
1.19 Should any protocols be established with regard to information exchange with other bodies
then they will be made available.
1.20 Where required by law applicants will receive copies of any representations made in respect
of their application, although sensitive or personal information not required to be disclosed will be
redacted.

Enforcement
1.21 The licensing authority’s enforcement principles are that it will be guided by the Gambling
Commission’s guidance to licensing authorities in respect of the inspection of premises and the
powers to institute criminal proceedings. The licensing authority will endeavour to be:







Proportionate: regulators should only intervene when necessary: remedies should
be appropriate to the risk posed, and costs identified and minimised;
Accountable: regulators must be able to justify decisions, and be subject to public
scrutiny;
Consistent: rules and standards must be joined up and implemented fairly;
Transparent: regulators should be open, and keep regulations simple and user
friendly;
Targeted: regulation should be focused on the problem, and minimise side effects
Within the principles of the Regulators Code issued by the Better Regulation
Delivery Office of the Department for Business Innovation and Skills

1.22 Lambeth’s enforcement policy for the Gambling Act 2005 is available via our website, at
www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/
1.23 The licensing authority may arrange for the inspection of premises, both licensed or
otherwise, in response to specific complaints about those premises and the provision of
unauthorised gambling activities therein. Should officers witness offences or breaches of an
authorisation, appropriate action will be taken in accordance with our enforcement policy.
1.24 The main enforcement and compliance role for this licensing authority in terms of the Act will
be to ensure compliance with the premises licences and the other permissions that it issues. The
Gambling Commission will be the lead enforcement body for operating and personal licences. It is
also noted that all issues relating to forms of remote gambling, as well as issues relating to the
manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines, will not be dealt with by the licensing authority
but will be notified to the Gambling Commission.
1.25 This licensing authority will also keep itself informed of developments regarding the work of
the Better Regulation Delivery Office in its consideration of the regulatory functions of local
authorities.

Gaming Machines
1.26 Throughout this document, references are made to gaming machines as being within
Categories A, B, C or D, or in some cases, sub-categories such as B1, B2, B3 or B4.
1.27 Gaming machines are categorised according to the nature of their operation, the maximum
charge to use and the maximum prize available, and the legislation sets out the categories and
Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-8-

Page 44

sub-categories of machines that may be made available under each type of licence or permit. The
Secretary of State is responsible for establishing the applicable values of each category and subcategory by way of statutory instrument.
1.28 As the values applicable to each category may be changed at relatively short notice, it is not
considered appropriate to include a list of the characteristics and values of each category within
this document. However, a separate document containing the current values is available from our
website, at www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-9-

Page 45
Part 2 – Premises Licences
2.1 The licensing authority is aware that in making decisions about premises licences it should aim
to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it:





in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling Commission;
in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission;
reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and
in accordance with the authority’s statement of licensing policy.

2.2 It is appreciated that, in accordance with the Gambling Commission’s guidance, moral
objections to gambling are not a valid reason to reject applications for premises licences, and also
that unmet demand is not a criterion for a licensing authority to consider.
2.3 The licensing authority expects applicants to take appropriate measures to promote the
licensing objectives, which may include such issues as proof of age schemes, supervision of
entrances and gaming machine areas, CCTV, physical separation of areas, self-exclusion
schemes, and provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as
GamCare. This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example
measures.
2.4 The issue of a premises licence must be reasonably consistent with the promotion of the
licensing objectives. With regard to these objectives, this licensing authority has considered the
Gambling Commission’s guidance to licensing authorities and some comments are made below.
Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime
or disorder or being used to support crime
2.5 This licensing authority is aware that the Gambling Commission will be taking a leading role in
preventing gambling from being a source of crime, and that regulatory issues arising from the
prevention of disorder are likely to focus almost exclusively on premises licensing, which is the
remit of the Licensing Authority. The Gambling Commission's guidance does however envisage that
licensing authorities should pay attention to the proposed location of gambling premises in terms of
this licensing objective. Where an area is known to have high levels of crime this authority will
consider carefully whether gambling premises are suitable to be located there, taking into account
such factors as,




levels of recorded crime,
the type of that crime,
levels of ASB related complaints.

2.6 Applicants are advised to examine crime and ASB statistics that relate to the vicinity of their
application. This will allow for the application to be tailored to the specific locality and to include any
additional measures potentially required to support the objective to be set out in the application. This
may also reduce the likelihood of objections being made to the application. Advice about accessing
such data can be provided by the Licensing Authority.
2.7 This licensing authority accepts that issues of nuisance cannot be addressed via the Gambling
Act provisions, although preventing gambling from being a source of disorder is a licensing
objective. The Licensing Authority is also mindful that what starts as nuisance may subsequently
escalate to disorder, and that such disorder can have a serious effect on the lives of local
residents. If an application for licence review were to be made on the basis of disorder the authority
will then distinguish between disorder and nuisance, considering factors such as,

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-10-

Page 46








whether police assistance was required
how threatening the behaviour was to those who could see it
how frequently it is reported
prevalence of persons loitering outside
the times of day when disorder is reported
the impact on residents

Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way
2.8 This licensing authority has noted that the Gambling Commission states that it generally does
not expect licensing authorities to become concerned with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a
fair and open way as this will be addressed via operating and personal licences. There is however,
more of a role with regard to tracks that is explained in more detail in the 'tracks' section below.
Protecting children & other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling
2.9 This licensing authority has noted the Gambling Commission's guidance that this objective
means preventing children from taking part in gambling (as well as restriction of advertising so that
gambling products are not aimed at or are particularly attractive to children). The licensing authority
will therefore consider, as suggested in the guidance, whether specific measures are required at
particular premises, with regard to this licensing objective.
2.10 The licensing authority is also aware of the Codes of Practice that the Gambling Commission
has issued in respect of this licensing objective, in relation to specific categories of premises.
2.11 With regard to the term “vulnerable persons” it is noted that the Gambling Commission has
not sought to offer a definition but states that “it will for regulatory purposes assume that this group
includes people who gamble more than they want to; people who gamble beyond their means; and
people who may not be able to make informed or balanced decisions about gambling due to a
mental impairment, alcohol or drugs.” This licensing authority will consider the promotion of this
licensing objective on a case by case basis. Should a practical definition prove possible in future
then this policy statement will be updated with it, by way of a revision.
2.12 In a borough with both high alcohol and drug dependency the Licensing Authority are
particularly concerned about both the health and social wellbeing of residents. Applicants are
requested in their applications to demonstrate how they will protect vulnerable persons, possibly by
providing information on how they operate exclusion schemes, the way in which they identify those
gambling beyond their means and the measures they take to stop those suffering from any
impairment from participating in gambling, and also the training provided to staff to support these
aims.

Conditions
2.13 Premises Licences are subject to the requirements set out in the Gambling Act 2005 and
regulations, as well as specific mandatory and default conditions that have been detailed in
regulations issued by the Secretary of State.2 The licensing authority, through the Licensing SubCommittee, may also impose further conditions in response to specific issues, which will be
decided on a case-by-case basis.
2

Statutory Instrument 2007 No. 1409 - The Gambling Act 2005 (Mandatory and Default Conditions) (England and
Wales) Regulations 2007

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-11-

Page 47

2.14 Any conditions attached to licences will be proportionate and will be:
 relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a gambling facility;
 directly related to the premises and the category of licence applied for;
 fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises;
 reasonable in all other respects;
 aimed at promoting both the licensing objectives and the aspirations of the Licensing
Authority where they relate to the licensing objectives and
 not duplicate other provisions.
2.15 An applicant can request that default conditions are excluded from a licence, and in these
circumstances the licensing authority may instead impose an appropriate condition that addresses
a similar matter to the excluded condition (for example, if a default condition relating to permitted
trading times is excluded, the licensing authority may attach a condition permitting longer trading
hours). The licensing authority will give a full explanation of the rationale behind the decision to
attach any additional condition, although there will be a number of measures this licensing authority
will consider utilising should there be a perceived need, such as the use of door supervisors,
appropriate signage for adult only areas etc. This licensing authority will also expect the licence
applicant to offer his/her own suggestions as to way in which the licensing objectives can be met
effectively.

2.16 It is noted that there are conditions that the licensing authority cannot attach to premises
licences these are:
 any condition on the premises licence that makes it impossible to comply with an operating
licence condition;
 conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method of operation;
 conditions which provide that membership of a club or body be required (the Act specifically
removed the membership requirement for casino and bingo clubs and this provision
prevents it being reinstated); and
 conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winning or prizes.
The Licensing Authority recognises that betting premises may only offer gambling facilities between
the hours of 07.00 and 22.00, these being the default hours. The Licensing Authority would like
applicants for new licences to consider if these hours are appropriate for the location subject to the
application. The Authority is aware that in some areas early morning start times can cause ASB
problems, especially from the street population and the Authority is keen to ensure that newly
granted licences do not exacerbate existing problems.

Location of Premises
2.17 The licensing authority is aware that demand issues cannot be considered with regard to the
location of premises but that considerations in terms of the licensing objectives can. Particular
attention will be paid to the protection of children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling, as well as issues of crime and disorder. Should any specific policy be
decided upon regarding areas where gambling premises should not be located, this statement will
be updated. It should be noted that any such policy does not preclude any application being made
and each application will be decided on its merits, with the onus upon the applicant to show how
potential concerns can be overcome.
2.18 The licensing authority will also ensure that where category C or above machines are on offer
in premises to which children are admitted:

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-12-

Page 48
 all such machines are located in an area of the premises which is separated
from the remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to prevent
access other than through a designated entrance;
 only adults are admitted to the area where these machines are located;
 access to the area where the machines are located is supervised;
 the area where these machines are located is arranged so that it can be observed by the
staff or the licence holder; and
 at the entrance to and inside any such areas there are prominently displayed notices
indicating that access to the area is prohibited to persons under 18.
2.19 These considerations will apply to premises including buildings where multiple premises
licences may have effect.
2.20 The Licensing Authority is aware that there is no process under the Gambling Act to limit the
numbers of betting premises in an area, it is however aware that concentrations of betting
premises in an area do become a concern to residents, particularly with regard to public nuisance
and the potential for escalation to disorder. Applicants may wish to examine the number of other
existing betting premises in the locality, if there are already other licenses in place they may wish
to address this potential issue in their application for any new licence.

Division of Premises and Primary Usage

2.21 In the Act, ‘premises’ is defined as including "any place". Section 152 prevents more than one
premises licence applying to any single place. But a single building could be subject to more than
one premises licence, provided they are for different parts of the building and the different parts of
the building can be reasonably regarded as being different premises. This approach has been
taken to allow large, multiple unit premises such as a pleasure park, tracks or shopping centres to
obtain discrete premises licences, where appropriate safeguards are in place.
2.22 This licensing authority takes particular note of the Gambling Commission’s guidance which
states that licensing authorities should take particular care in considering applications for multiple
licences for a building and those relating to a discrete part of a building used for other (nongambling) purposes. In particular they should be aware of the following:






The third licensing objective seeks to protect children from being harmed by gambling. In
practice that means not only preventing them from taking part in gambling, but also
preventing them from being in close proximity to gambling. Therefore premises should be
configured so that children are not invited to participate in, have accidental access to or
closely observe gambling where they are prohibited from participating.
Entrances to and exits from parts of a building covered by one or more premises licences
should be separate and identifiable so that the separation of different premises is not
compromised and people do not “drift” into a gambling area. In this context it should
normally be possible to access the premises without going through another licensed
premises or premises with a permit.
Customers should be able to participate in the activities identified on the premises licence.

2.23 The licensing authority will also consider specific measures that may be required for buildings
that are subject to multiple premises licences. Such measures may include the supervision of
entrances; segregation of gambling from non-gambling areas frequented by children; and the
supervision of gaming machines in non-adult gambling specific premises in order to pursue the
licensing objectives. These matters are in accordance with the Gambling Commission's guidance.
2.24 This licensing authority is also aware that an issue has arisen in some parts of the country,
where operators have sought to sub-divide existing single licensed premises, and obtain further
premises licences in respect of each sub-division. It has been observed that this practice has been
used predominantly in respect of categories of premises licences which allow the operation of a
Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-13-

Page 49
small, fixed number of high-value gaming machines – in effect, using multiple
premises licences in respect of different areas of a single business to artificially increase the
permitted number of category B machines that can be made available.
2.25 The licensing authority notes the Commission’s guidance that “in most cases the expectation
is that a single building/plot will be the subject of an application for a licence, for example, 32 High
Street. But that does not mean that 32 High Street cannot be the subject of separate premises
licences for the basement and ground floor, if they are configured acceptably. Whether different
parts of a building can properly be regarded as being separate premises will depend on the
circumstances.” When assessing whether premises can be regarded as separate, the licensing
authority proposes to apply the following criteria:







Does each premises have its own external entrance, or is accessed via another premises?
Does each premise trade as a separate entity, or under a single banner?
Are the premises subject to separate non-domestic rateable valuations?
Is each premises operated by different persons, or the same proprietor?
What is the quality of separation (i.e. if dividing barriers are to be used, are they temporary
or permanent, floor-ceiling division or fixed height, transparent or opaque, etc)?
Is there a genuine need to establish a division between premises, or is the division aimed
solely at artificially increasing the permitted number of high-value gaming machines?

2.26 If it is proposed to utilise sterile, non-gambling areas to create sub-divisions, then the
licensing authority will apply the following criteria to those areas:





Is the area proposed for non-gambling activities a token separation?
Is it genuinely an area which the public would go to for purposes other than gambling?
Is it in effect a device to introduce artificial separation or genuinely a functionally separate
area?
Is there in effect direct access between the divisions or is there a place from which access
can be gained to two premises?

2.27 The licensing authority also notes that any premises subject to multiple discrete premises
licences must be able to comply with the mandatory conditions restricting access to each licensed
premises, as follows:
Premises type
Adult gaming centre

Access restrictions
No direct access from any other licensed gambling premises,
or from premises with a family entertainment centre gaming
machine permit, a club gaming/machine permit, or an alcohollicensed premises gaming machine permit

Betting (other)

Access from a street or another betting premises only.
No direct access from any premises used for retail sale of
goods or services

Betting (track)

No direct access from licensed casino or adult gaming centre
premises

Bingo

No direct access from licensed casino, adult gaming centre or
betting (other) premises

Family Entertainment Centre

No direct access from licensed casino, adult gaming centre or
betting (other) premises

2.28 In the case of some divided premises, it appears that the intended primary use of a premises
licence had not been offered, with operators solely making use of the additional machine

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-14-

Page 50
entitlement (for example, holding a Bingo premises licence but not making any
facilities for playing bingo available). The Gambling Commission consulted on this issue in 20083,
and subsequently issued a revision to the Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice affecting
Bingo, Betting and Casino operating licences. Holders of these licences are now mandated to
provide suitable and sufficient facilities for their primary gambling activity in any of their associated
premises.

Door Supervisors
2.29 The Gambling Commission advises in its guidance that if a licensing authority is concerned
that a premises may attract disorder or be subject to attempts at unauthorised access (for example
by children and young persons) then it may require that the entrances to those premises are
supervised, and impose a condition to that effect. Consideration must also be given to whether that
supervisor needs to be licensed or not, as the statutory requirements vary by premises type. This
licensing authority notes the contents of Part 33 of the Commission’s guidance, which outlines a
limited relaxation of the licensing requirement for door supervisors at licensed bingo and casino
premises – however, operators are encouraged to use door supervisors who are licensed by the
Security Industry Authority at these venues. Any other venue using door supervisors must use
qualified staff registered with the Security Industry Authority.

Provisional Statements
2.30 The Act provides for a person to make an application to the licensing authority for a
provisional statement in respect of premises that he or she:
 expects to be constructed;
 expects to be altered; or
 expects to acquire a right to occupy.
2.31 Developers may wish to apply to this authority for a provisional statement before entering into
a contract to buy or lease property or land, to judge whether a development is worth taking forward
in light of the need to obtain a premises licence. There is no need for the applicant to hold an
operating licence in order to apply for a provisional statement, nor do they need to have a right to
occupy the premises in respect of which the application is made.
2.32 The process for considering an application for a provisional statement is the same as that for
a premises licence application. The applicant is obliged to give notice of the application in the
same way as applying for a premises licence. Responsible authorities and interested parties may
make representations and there are rights of appeal.
2.33 The holder of a provisional statement may subsequently apply for a premises licence once the
premises are constructed, altered or acquired. The licensing authority will be constrained in the
matters it can consider when determining the premises licence application, and in terms of
representations about premises licence applications that follow the grant of a provisional
statement, no further representations from relevant authorities or interested parties can be taken
into account unless:
 they concern matters which could not have been addressed at the provisional statement
stage, or
 they reflect a change in the applicant’s circumstances.

3

See
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/research__consultations/consultations/closed_consultations_with_resp/sp
lit_premises_and_primary_gam.aspx for details of this consultation
Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-15-

Page 51
2.34 In addition, the authority may refuse the premises licence (or grant it on terms
different to those attached to the provisional statement) only by reference to matters:




which could not have been raised by objectors at the provisional statement stage;
which in the authority’s opinion reflect a change in the operator’s circumstances; or
where the premise has not been constructed in accordance with the plan submitted with the
application. This must be a substantial change to the plan and this licensing authority notes
that it can discuss any concerns it has with the applicant before making a decision.

2.35 If a developer has already acquired a premise and has a right of occupation, and holds an
appropriate operating licence, there is no requirement for them to obtain a provisional statement
prior to making an application for a premises licence – this will simply be a matter of choice.
However, where premises are likely to require construction or development work prior to being
ready for use for gambling (and as such are not in a state where they can be inspected during the
application process), the licensing authority may seek to attach the following additional conditions
to any licence granted:



The premises are to be constructed in accordance with the deposited plans and shall not
trade until such time as they have been inspected and approved by officers of the licensing
authority.
The licence is to be offered for surrender should the premises not have been completed in
accordance with the deposited plans within the period of 12/18/24 months starting on the
day that the licence first takes effect.

Reviews
2.36 Applications for a review of a premises licence can be made at any time by interested parties
or responsible authorities. The Licensing Authority must grant an application for review, unless it
considers that the grounds on which the review is sought:







Raise issues that are not relevant to Gambling Commission Guidance/codes of practice,
the Licensing Authorities Statement of Policy or the licensing objectives.
Are frivolous
Are vexatious
will certainly not cause this authority to wish to alter/revoke/suspend the licence
are substantially the same as grounds cited inn a previous application relating to the same
premises
are substantially the same as representations made at the time of the application for the
premises licence was considered.

2.37 The licensing authority can also initiate a review of a licence on the basis of any reason that it
thinks is appropriate. In particular, the licensing authority may initiate a review of a premises
licence on the grounds that a premises licence holder has not provided facilities for gambling at the
premises. This is to prevent people from applying for licences in a speculative manner without
intending to use them.
2.38 Once a valid application for a review has been received by the licensing authority,
representations can be made by responsible authorities and interested parties during a 28-day
period, that will begin 7 days after receipt of the application. The licensing authority will publish
notice of the application within this initial 7-day period.
Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-16-

Page 52

2.39 The licensing authority must carry out the review as soon as possible after the 28 day period
for making representations has passed.
2.40 The purpose of the review will be to determine whether the licensing authority should take any
action in relation to the licence. If action is justified, the options open to the licensing authority are:




to add, remove or amend a licence condition imposed by the licensing authority;
to exclude a default condition imposed by the Secretary of State (e.g. opening hours) or
remove or amend such an exclusion;
to suspend the premises licence for a period not exceeding three months; or
to revoke the premises licence.

2.41 In determining what action, if any, should be taken following a review, the licensing authority
will have regard to the principles set out in section 153 of the Act, as well as any relevant
representations.
2.42 Following the completion of the review, the licensing authority will notify its decision in writing
to the licence holder, the applicant for review (if any), any person who made representations in
respect of the review, and the responsible authorities designated in regulations made under the
Act.

Categories of Premises Licence
Casino Premises Licences
2.43 The London Borough of Lambeth has resolved, under section 166 of the Act, not to issue any
Casino premises licences. This resolution shall have effect from 20 June 2016 until 20 June 2019,
unless revoked prior to this date.
2.44 Identical resolutions had effect from 2007 to 2010, 2010 to 2013 and 2013 to 2016.
2.45 At present, the Act only allows for a fixed number of ‘regional’, ‘large’ and ‘small’ casinos to be
licensed nationally. Licensing authorities must be expressly authorised by the Secretary of State to
issue new licences for any of these categories, to ensure that the national limits are not exceeded.
Lambeth is not amongst the authorities that have been so authorised.

Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences
2.46 This licensing authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling, and will expect the applicant to
satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures to, for example, ensure that under 18
year olds do not have access to the premises.

Betting (Other) Premises Licences
2.47 The authority notes the difference between betting terminals, which are designed to receive
bets on real events, and gaming machines such as fixed odds betting terminals (FOBTs), which
are reliant upon the outcome of a virtual event. It is further noted that betting premises are entitled
to offer up to four gaming machines in total, which may include category B2 (FOBT) machines.
There are no statutory limits on the number of betting terminals that may be made available in
betting premises, although the licensing authority notes that it may attach a condition to a licence
limiting the number if concerns exist over the availability of machines to children or vulnerable
persons which cannot be satisfied through alternative means.

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-17-

Page 53
2.48 This licensing authority will, as per the Commission’s guidance, take into
account the size of the premises, the number of counter positions available for person-to-person
transactions, and the ability of staff to monitor the use of betting terminals by children and young
persons (it is an offence for those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable people, when considering the
number, nature and circumstances of betting terminals an operator wants to offer.

Betting (Track) Premises Licences
2.49 The licensing authority is aware that tracks may be subject to one or more premises licences,
provided each licence relates to a specified area of the track. As per the Gambling Commission's
guidance, this licensing authority will consider the impact upon the third licensing objective and the
need to ensure that entrances to each type of premises are distinct and that children are excluded
from gambling areas which they are not permitted to enter.
2.50 The authority will therefore expect the premises licence applicant to demonstrate suitable
measures to ensure that children do not have access to adult-only gaming facilities. It is noted that
children and young persons will be permitted to enter track areas where facilities for betting are
provided on days when dog-racing and/or horse-racing takes place, but that they are still prevented
from entering areas where gaming machines (other than category D machines) are provided.

2.51 Parliament has recently amended section 55 of the Act, to allow the employment of persons
under the age of 18 years at track premises, in functions not associated with gambling (for
example, as ticket checkers, concession kiosk staff, litter collectors, and so on). However, the
offence under section 51, prohibiting the employment of children and young persons to provide
facilities for gambling, is unaffected. Proprietors of track premises must ensure that any persons
under the age of 18 employed at their premises are not called upon to assist with the operation of
betting facilities.

2.52 The entitlement to make up to four gaming machines available for use at the track premises
may only be utilised if the holder of the premises licence also holds a pool betting operating
licence. In situations where this is the case and it is proposed to make gaming machines available
for use, any gaming machines (other than category D machines) should be located in areas from
which children are excluded. If the track premises is licensed for the sale of alcohol, a further two
gaming machines may be made available by way of the automatic entitlement for alcohol-licensed
premises, upon payment of the appropriate notification fee.
2.53 Betting terminals may also be made available for use at track premises, and this licensing
authority proposes to apply the same principles as set out in the Betting (other) Premises Licence
section, above, to track premises.
2.54 A condition to track premises licences is that the track operator is to ensure that the terms for
placing bets are prominently displayed in or near the betting areas, or that other measures are
taken to ensure that they are made available to the public.
2.55 Applicants are required to submit plans of the premises with their application, in order to
ensure that the licensing authority has the necessary information to make an informed judgement
about whether the premises are fit for gambling. The plan will also be used for the licensing
authority to plan future premises inspection activity. Plans for tracks do not need to be in a
particular scale, but should be drawn to scale and should be sufficiently detailed to include the
information required by regulations.
2.56 Some tracks may be situated on open land where the perimeter is not defined by virtue of an
outer wall or fence, such as point-to-point racetracks. In such instances, where an entry fee is
levied, track premises licence holders may erect temporary structures to restrict access to
Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-18-

Page 54
premises. In the rare cases where the outer perimeter cannot be defined, it is likely
that the track in question will not be specifically designed for the frequent holding of sporting events
or races. In such cases betting facilities may be better provided through occasional use notices
where the boundary premises do not need to be defined.
2.57 This authority appreciates that it is sometimes difficult to define the precise location of betting
areas on tracks. The precise location of where betting facilities are provided is not required to be
shown on track plans, both by virtue of the fact that betting is permitted anywhere on the premises
and because of the difficulties associated with pinpointing exact locations for some types of track.
Applicants should provide sufficient information that this authority can satisfy itself that the plan
indicates the main areas where betting might take place.

Bingo Premises Licences

2.58 This licensing authority notes the Commission’s guidance, that licensing authorities will need to
satisfy themselves that it is possible for bingo to be played in any premises for which they issue a
bingo premises licence. This will be a relevant consideration where the operator of an existing
bingo premises applies to vary their licence and/or apply for new licences, as discussed in the
Division of Premises and Primary Usage section, above.
2.59 If children are allowed to enter premises licensed for bingo they are not permitted to
participate in the bingo, nor may they make use of any category of gaming machine, other than
those in category D. Where category B or C machines are made available in premises to which
children are admitted it is expected that:
 all such machines will be located in an area of the premises separated from the remainder
of the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to prevent access other than through
a designated entrance;
 only adults will be admitted to the area where the machines are located;
 access to the area where the machines are located will be supervised;
 the area where the machines are located is arranged so that it can be observed by staff of
the operator or the licence holder; and
 at the entrance to, and inside any such area there are prominently displayed notices
indicating that access to the area is prohibited to persons under 18.

Family Entertainment Centre Premises Licences
2.60 The licensing authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to
satisfy the authority, for example, that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18
year olds do not have access to the adult only gaming machine areas.
2.61 This licensing authority will, as per the Gambling Commission’s guidance, refer to the
Commission’s website and make itself aware of any conditions that apply to operating licences
covering the way in which the area containing the category C machines should be delineated.

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-19-

Page 55
Part 3 – Permits and Notices
3.1 While the proprietors of dedicated, high-value gambling outlets will generally be required to
complete a comprehensive application process to obtain Premises and Operating Licences, the Act
also makes provision for simpler process for incidental and low-value gambling opportunities, such
as gaming machines in pubs, bars and clubs, and small-stakes prize gaming. This part of the
statement outlines the principles that we will apply to applications for gaming and gaming machine
permits, and notifications of temporary or occasional gambling usage.

Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits & Notifications
3.2 There is provision in the Act for premises licensed to sell alcohol for consumption on the
premises, to automatically make 2 gaming machines, of categories C and/or D, available for use.
The holder of the premises licence merely needs to notify the licensing authority that they intend to
make use of this entitlement, and make payment of the prescribed notification fee. The licensing
authority can remove the automatic authorisation in respect of any particular premises if:
 provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the licensing
objectives;
 gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of section 282 of the Act
(i.e. that written notice has been provided to the licensing authority, that a fee has been
provided and that any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling Commission about
the location and operation of the machine has been complied with);
 the premises are mainly used for gaming; or
 an offence under the Gambling Act 2005 has been committed on the premises.
3.3 If a premises wishes to make 3 or more gaming machines available for use, then an application
must be made for a licensed premises gaming machine permit. When considering that application,
the licensing authority must have regard to the licensing objectives and any guidance issued by the
Gambling Commission. The licensing authority may also consider “such other matters as they think
relevant.”
3.4 This licensing authority will decide upon the interpretation of “such other matters” on a case by
case basis but generally there will be regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable persons
from harm or being exploited by gambling. The licensing authority will expect the applicant to
satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that under-18 year olds do not
have access to the adult-only gaming machines (category C). Examples of measures to satisfy the
authority may include the gaming machines being positioned in sight of the bar, or in the sight of
staff who will monitor that the machines are not being used by those under 18. Notices and
signage may also assist. Regarding the protection of vulnerable persons, applicants may wish to
consider the provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as
GamCare.
3.5 It is recognised that some alcohol-licensed premises may apply for a premises licence for their
non-alcohol licensed areas. Any such application would most likely need to be made for, and dealt
with as, an Adult Gaming Centre premises licence.
3.6 It should be noted that the licensing authority can decide to grant the application for a smaller
number of machines and/or a different category of machines than that applied for. Although
licensing authorities cannot attach any further conditions beyond these matters, permit holders are
obliged to operate any gaming machines in compliance with the Commission’s ‘Gaming Machine
Permits Code of Practice’, which imposes binding requirements for the supervision of gaming
machines and for their positioning away from ATM’s, as well as offering a number of examples of
best practice in respect of the prevention of underage gambling and the protection of vulnerable
persons.
Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-20-

Page 56
Club Gaming Permits & Club Machine Permits

3.7 Members clubs and miners’ welfare institutes may apply for a Club Gaming Permit or a
Club Machine Permit, while commercial clubs may apply for a Club Machine Permit only.
A Club Gaming Permit will enable the premises to provide gaming machines (3 machines of
categories B, C or D), equal chance gaming and games of chance as set-out in regulations. A Club
Machine Permit will enable the premises to provide gaming machines (3 machines of categories B,
C or D) only.
3.8 The Commission’s guidance states: "Members clubs must have at least 25 members and be
established and conducted ‘wholly or mainly’ for purposes other than gaming, unless the gaming is
permitted by separate regulations. The Secretary of State has made such regulations and these
cover bridge and whist clubs4. A members’ club must be permanent in nature and established and
conducted for the benefit of its members and not as a commercial enterprise. Examples include
working men’s clubs, branches of Royal British Legion and clubs with political affiliations."
3.9 The Commission’s guidance also notes that licensing authorities may only refuse an
application on the grounds that:
 the applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or commercial club or miners’
welfare institute and therefore is not entitled to receive the type of permit for which it has
applied;
 the applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or young persons;
 an offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by the applicant while
providing gaming facilities;
 a permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten years; or
 an objection has been lodged by the Commission or the police.
3.10 There is also a ‘fast-track’ procedure available under the Act for qualifying clubs that hold a
Club Premises Certificate under the Licensing Act 2003. Under the fast-track procedure there is no
opportunity for objections to be made by the Commission or the police, and the grounds upon which
an authority can refuse a permit are reduced to:
 the club is established primarily for gaming, other than gaming prescribed by regulations
made under section 266 of the Act;
 in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities for other gaming; or
 a club gaming permit or club machine permit issued to the applicant in the last ten years
has been cancelled.
3.11 There are statutory conditions on club gaming permits that no child may use a category B or
C machine on the premises and that the holder complies with any relevant provision of a code of
practice about the location and operation of gaming machines.

Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits
3.12 The proprietor of a family entertainment centre premises, who wishes to make only category
D gaming machines available for use, can do so in reliance upon a Family Entertainment Centre
Gaming Machine Permit. This category of permit provides an alternative to the Family
Entertainment Centre Premises Licences available under the Act, which allow the operation of
higher-value gaming machines but are subject to more rigorous application procedures.
3.13 Any application for a permit will be considered with regard to the licensing objectives and to
any relevant guidance issued by the Commission. Particular weight will be given to child protection
4

Statutory Instrument 2007 No. 1942 – The Gambling Act 2005 (Gaming in Clubs) Regulations 2007

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-21-

Page 57
issues.
3.14 The applicant will be expected to show that there are policies and procedures in place to
protect children from harm. Harm in this context is not limited to harm from gambling but includes
wider child protection considerations. The efficiency of such policies and procedures will each be
considered on their merits, however, they may include appropriate measures / training for staff as
regarding suspected truant school children on the premises, measures / training covering how staff
would deal with unsupervised very young children being on the premises, or children causing
perceived problems on / around the premises. This licensing authority will also expect, as per
Gambling Commission guidance, that applicants demonstrate a full understanding of the maximum
stakes and prizes of the gambling that is permissible in unlicensed FECs; that the applicant (or
company directors if the applicant is a limited company) has no relevant convictions and that staff
are trained to have a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes.
3.15 Applicants will also be asked to supply a plan of the internal layout of the family entertainment
centre, drawn to an appropriate scale, that shows the location of the area(s) where category D
gaming machine will be made available for use.
3.16 An application for a permit may be granted only if the licensing authority is satisfied that the
premises will be used as an unlicensed FEC, and if the chief officer of police has been consulted
on the application.
3.17 It is noted that a licensing authority cannot attach conditions to this type of permit.
3.18 This licensing authority has produced a Family Entertainment Centre gaming machine permit
application form, but, so long as the required information is provided, will not require applications to
be made exclusively in this format. The form can be downloaded from our website, at
www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/

Prize Gaming Permits
3.19 In any application for a prize gaming permit the applicant should set out the types of gaming
that he or she is intending to offer, and should also be able to demonstrate:
 that they understand the limits on stakes and prizes that are set out in Regulations5;
 that the gaming offered is within the law; and
 that appropriate measures will be taken to ensure that children are protected from being
harmed or exploited by gambling – in particular, the measures that will be taken to ensure
that children cannot participate in the gambling offered.
3.20 In making its decision on an application for this permit the licensing authority does not need to
have regard to the licensing objectives but must have regard to any Gambling Commission
guidance.
3.21 There are conditions in the Gambling Act 2005 with which the permit holder must comply, but
the licensing authority cannot attach further conditions. The conditions in the Act are:
 the limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be complied with;
 all chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises on which the
gaming is taking place and on one day; the game must be played and completed on the day
the chances are allocated; and the result of the game must be made public in the premises
on the day that it is played;
 the prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set out in regulations (if
5

Statutory Instrument 2009 No. 1272 – The Gambling Act 2005 (Limits on Prize Gaming) Regulations 2009

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-22-

Page 58
a money prize), or the prescribed value (if non-monetary prize); and
 participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any other gambling.

Temporary Use Notices
3.22 Temporary Use Notices allow a gambling operator to make infrequent use of unlicensed
premises, to use the premises temporarily for providing facilities for gambling. Premises that might
be suitable for a Temporary Use Notice, according the Gambling Commission, may include hotels,
conference centres and sporting venues.
3.23 The licensing authority can only accept a Temporary Use Notice from a person or company
holding a relevant non-remote operating licence.
3.24 The types of gambling activities that may be authorised by a Temporary Use Notice are set
out by the Secretary of State in regulations made under the Act6. Currently, the only permitted
activity is the provision of facilities for equal chance gaming, where the gaming is intended to
produce a single overall winner. Possible examples of this could include gaming tournaments with
such games as backgammon, mah-jong, rummy, kalooki, dominoes, cribbage, bingo and poker.
3.25 Temporary Use Notices are subject to a statutory limit that a set of premises may be used for
no more than 21 days in any 12 month period. As with "premises", the definition of "a set of
premises" will be a question of fact in the particular circumstances of each notice that is given. In
considering whether a place falls within the definition of "a set of premises", the licensing authority
will look at, amongst other things, the ownership/occupation and control of the premises.
3.26 This licensing authority expects to object to notices where it appears that their effect would be
to permit regular gambling in a place that could be described as one set of premises, as
recommended in the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities.

Occasional Use Notices
3.27 Occasional Use Notices may be used to authorise infrequent betting at track premises, on no
more than 8 days in any calendar year. They cannot be used to authorise any other form of
gambling activity (e.g. gaming machines). Providing that the 8-day limit is not breached, there is no
provision for correctly-served notices to be refused by a licensing authority.
3.28 The licensing authority notes that the definition of track premises is not restricted to permanent
premises, but can include any premises or land on which a race or sporting event is to take place.
Consideration will therefore be given to the nature of the premises specified in a notice, in addition
to whether the person giving the notice is an occupier of the track, or is responsible for the
administration of events at the track.
3.29 It is further noted that Occasional Use Notices do not relieve any person accepting bets at the
track premises from the requirement to hold an appropriate Betting operating licence, nor from the
requirements of any conditions imposed upon that licence.
3.30 This licensing authority has produced a template form, suitable for giving an Occasional Use
Notice, but will not require notifications to be given exclusively in this format. The template form
can be downloaded from www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/

Travelling Fairs
3.31 It will fall to this licensing authority to decide whether, at travelling fairs where category D
6

Statutory Instrument 2007 No. 3157 - The Gambling Act 2005 (Temporary Use Notices) Regulations 2007

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-23-

Page 59
machines are to be made available for use and / or equal chance prize gaming
without a permit is offered, the statutory requirement that the facilities for gambling amount to no
more than an ancillary amusement at the fair is met.
3.32 The licensing authority will also consider whether the applicant falls within the statutory
definition of a travelling fair.
3.33 It has been noted that the 27-day statutory maximum for the land being used as a fair, is per
calendar year, and that it applies to the piece of land on which the fairs are held, regardless of
whether it is the same or different travelling fairs occupying the land. This licensing authority will
work with its neighbouring authorities to ensure that land that crosses our boundaries is monitored
so that the statutory limits are not exceeded.

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-24-

Page 60
Part 4 – Lotteries
4.1 The Gambling Act 2005 regulates all forms of fund-raising lotteries promoted in the UK. With
the exception of the National Lottery, which is not regulated under this Act, it is illegal to promote a
lottery for private or commercial gain.
4.2 While the term ‘lottery’ is used within the legislation, these provisions are also likely to apply to
raffles, prize draws, tombola’s, sweepstakes, scratch-card sales, and so on – in short, any
arrangement in which a ticket is sold for a random chance of winning a prize. For the sake of
simplicity, ‘lottery’ is used to define all of these.
4.3 Broadly speaking, there are two categories of lottery established under the Act –
 Licensed lotteries include those run by societies that aim to raise more than £20,000 in a
single draw, or £250,000 in a calendar year, as well as any lotteries promoted by a local
authority. An operating licence must be held by the promoter(s) of these lotteries.
 Exempt lotteries fall into one of four sub-categories, each with its own limits on the
amounts that can be raised, the purposes for which it can be promoted, and the manner in
which it must be run. These sub-categories comprise Incidental Non-Commercial Lotteries,
Customer Lotteries, Private Lotteries, and Small Society Lotteries.
4.4 The administration and enforcement of licensed lotteries is carried out solely by the Gambling
Commission, although local authorities may provide information and intelligence to assist in these
processes. Of the four sub-categories of exempt lotteries, only Small Society Lotteries require
registration with a local authority – no authorisation is required for the other three categories. Both
the Commission and local authorities may carry out enforcement checks to ensure that any exempt
lotteries are carried on in accordance with the relevant legal restrictions.
4.5 Should a society registered with a licensing authority for the promotion of small society lotteries
promote a lottery which causes either on the statutory limits on proceeds to be exceeded, then any
subsequent lotteries promoted by that society in the current calendar year or any of the following
three calendar years will be deemed to be large society lotteries, and will require the society to
obtain a relevant operating licence from the Gambling Commission. The registration with the
licensing authority will remain in force, but will not serve to authorise any lottery schemes during this
period – it is open to the society as to whether to cancel the registration.

Free Prize Draws & Skill Competitions
4.6 The Gambling Act 2005 does not include any measures to regulate prize draws where there is
no charge to enter, nor any competition where the outcome relies significantly upon a participant’s
skill, judgement or knowledge. Generally, the licensing authority will be unable to become involved
in any matters relating to these schemes.
4.7 However, on some occasions, schemes that are presented as skill competitions will actually fall
under the definition of lotteries, or prize (chance) gaming, and would therefore need to comply with
the statutory requirements. Alongside the Gambling Commission, licensing authorities are obliged to
monitor the boundaries between lotteries and skill competitions, and will provide advice and
assistance to ensure that any competitions are run in compliance with the relevant laws. This
licensing authority notes the criteria set out in section 14 of the Act relating to the characteristics of a
skill competition, and, when called upon to assess a particular scheme, will seek to ensure that the
competition includes a suitable challenge of skill, judgement or knowledge that will:
 prevent a significant proportion of people who wish to participate from doing so; or
Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-25-

Page 61
 prevent a significant proportion of people who participate from receiving a
prize.

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-26-

Page 62
Appendix A – Map of Lambeth

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-27-

Page 63
Appendix B – Consultation
The Gambling Act 2005 requires that, when preparing the statement of principles, the following
parties be consulted by licensing authorities:
 The Chief Officer of Police;
 One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of persons
carrying on gambling businesses in the authority’s area;
 One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of persons who
are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s functions under the Gambling Act
2005.
In accordance with the statutory requirements, this authority consulted with the following:
 The Metropolitan Police (Lambeth Borough Commander and Lambeth Licensing Unit)
 The individuals and organisations who hold Premises Licences issued by this licensing
authority under this Act
 The organisations who have applied for or hold gaming machine permits for multiple or
high-profile premises within the borough
 Representative bodies within the gambling and leisure industry, including:
o Association of British Bookmakers
o British Beer and Pub Association
o British Association of Leisure Parks, Piers and Attractions
o The Bingo Association
o British Amusement Catering Trade Association
o Business in Sport and Leisure
o National Casino Industry Forum (formerly the British Casino Association)
 All elected ward councillors
 The responsible authorities identified under the Act, including the Gambling Commission,
HM Revenues & Customs, the London Fire Brigade, and Lambeth’s Planning,
Neighbourhood Enforcement, Health and Safety, Community Safety and Children’s Services
Details of the consultation and the draft statement were also made available on Lambeth’s website
throughout the consultation period, accessible via www.lambeth.gov.uk/gamblingpolicy

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-28-

Page 64
Appendix C – Contact Details
For information on this statement of principles, or for informal advice on making an application or
whether a particular gambling activity is likely to require authorisation, please contact:
Licensing Section
London Borough of Lambeth
International House
6 Canterbury Crescent
London, SW9 7QE
Tel: 020 7926 5000
Email: licensing@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/
The following bodies are designated as Responsible Authorities under this legislation:
The Gambling Commission
Victoria Square House
Victoria Square
Birmingham
B2 4BP
Tel:
0121 230 6666
Email: info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Planning Department
London Borough of Lambeth
Phoenix House
10 Wandsworth Road
London
SW8 2LL
Tel:
020 7926 1180
Email: planning@lambeth.gov.uk

Metropolitan Police (Lambeth Licensing Unit)
International House
6 Canterbury Crescent
London
SW9 7QE

Neighbourhood Enforcement (Noise/Pollution)
London Borough of Lambeth
International House
6 Canterbury Crescent
London SW9 7QE

Tel:
020 8649 2089
Email: Licensing-LX@met.police.uk

Tel:
020 7926 5000
Email: noise@lambeth.gov.uk

London Fire Brigade
Fire Safety Regulation: South West Area 4
169 Union Street
London
SE1 0LL

Health & Safety
London Borough of Lambeth
International House
6 Canterbury Crescent
London SW9 7QE

Tel:
020 8555 1200 ext 37639
Email: FSRSW@london-fire.gov.uk

Tel:
020 7926 6110
Email: healthandsafety@lambeth.gov.uk

HM Revenue and Customs
National Registration Unit
Portcullis House
21 India Street
Glasgow
G2 4PZ

Children's Services
London Borough of Lambeth
International House
Canterbury Crescent
London
SW9 7QE

Tel:
0141 555 3633
Email: nrubetting&gaming@hmrc.gsi.gov.uk

Tel:

020 7926 5555

Further authorities have been designated in respect of any gambling taking place aboard vessels.

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

-29-

Page 65

Lambeth Safer Neighbourhood Board
Chair
Deputy Chair
Programme Manager

Kristian Aspinall
Lead Commissioner – Crime and Disorder
London Borough of Lambeth
Community Safeguarding
Phoenix House, 3rd Floor
10 Wandsworth Road
London SW8 2LL
(by email only)

e-mail

Nick Mason OBE
Mahamed Hashi
Alastair Reid
lambethsnb@gmail.com

14 April 2016
Dear Kristian,
GAMBLING ACT 2005
REVIEW OF LAMBETH STATEMENT OF LICENSING PRINCIPLES 2016-19
Thank you for your emailed letter of April 2016.
Following the discussion at the Safer Lambeth Executive Partnership meeting on 23 March 2016 and the
commentary in your letter, on behalf of the Lambeth Safer Neighbourhood Board I confirm that I am
content with the Council's proposals to readopt the existing Statement of Licensing Principles with the
small revisions, as suggested.
The only suggestion that the Board would make at this stage is that the Licensing Committee consider
whether in the interests of overall crime prevention and reduction in the borough, an “advisory” condition of
licensing should be that owners/managers of premises licenced for gambling should be registered with the
borough's Business Crime Reduction Partnership (BCRP) and participate in the intelligence sharing
arrangements of the BCRP.
I understand that the readopted Statement will then take effect from 20 June 2016 and the second stage
consultation will be undertaken for a revised Statement in Spring 2017.
The Lambeth Safer Neighbourhood Board will welcome the opportunity to be engaged in the second stage
consultation.
Best regards.
Yours sincerely
Nick Mason OBE
Chair
Lambeth Safer Neighbourhood Board

Page 66

Page 67

Agenda Item 9.b

Council 18 May 2016
Pay Policy Statement 2016/17
Wards: All
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director Corporate Resources – Jackie Belton
Portfolio: Cllr Paul McGlone, Deputy Leader (Investment and Partnerships)
Contact for enquiries:
ssherman@lambeth.gov.uk
Steve Sherman, HR Division, Corporate Resources, 020 7926 4093
Report summary
Section 38 (1) of the Localism Act 2011 requires English and Welsh local authorities to
produce a Pay Policy statement for 2012/13 and for each financial year after that.
Section 40 of the Act includes provision for the Secretary of State to issue guidance on
the content and application of senior pay statements. Supplementary Guidance was
subsequently issued by the Department for Communities and Local Government in
February 2013.
This report summarises the requirements of the Localism Act and the Supplementary
Guidance and asks Council to approve the Pay Policy Statement for 2016/17 (a copy of
which is attached as Appendix A).
Finance summary
There are no specific financial implications arising from this report.
Recommendations
Council are asked:
(1) To approve the Pay Policy Statement for 2016/17 attached at Appendix A
(2) That in the interests of improving accountability and transparency, to note the
appointments made to posts attracting remuneration in excess of £100,000 per
annum and severance packages in excess of £100,000 in the year 1 April 2015
to 31 March 2016
(3) To note the proposed new legislation in relation to the recovery of public sector
exit payments
(4) To note the proposed new legislation in relation to a “cap” on public sector exit
payments

Page 68
1.

Context

1.1

Section 38 (1) of the Localism Act 2011 requires English and Welsh local
authorities to produce a Pay Policy statement for 2012/13 and for each financial
year after that. Section 40 of the Act includes provision for the Secretary of State
to issue guidance on the content and application of senior pay statements.
Relevant authorities must have regard to this guidance in the exercise of their
functions under the pay accountability provisions. Council approved the Pay
Policy Statement for 2015/16 at its meeting on 20 May 2015 and this Statement
is published on the Council’s web site.

1.2

The Department for Communities and Local Government issued Supplementary
Guidance in February 2013. Authorities in England must take account of this and
the original Guidance when preparing their Pay Policy Statements for 2013/14
and each subsequent financial year. This Supplementary Guidance deals mainly
with salaries on appointment and severance payments at a threshold of £100,000
and over, setting out that full Council should be offered the opportunity to vote on
such packages. The Councils Pay Policy Statement was therefore reviewed in
the light of this guidance and Council, at its meeting on 22 May 2013, endorsed
the existing council process for the appointment and setting of senior pay as set
out in the council’s constitution and the existing council process for determining
termination payments on redundancy as required by legislation. In addition,
Council endorsed the proposal that, in the interests of improving accountability
and transparency, all appointments made to posts attracting remuneration in
excess of £100,000 per annum and all severance packages in excess of
£100,000 shall be highlighted in the annual report to Council of the Pay Policy
Statement.

1.3

In the financial year 2015/16 there were four appointments made to posts
attracting remuneration in excess of £100,000 per annum as follows:





Delivery Director Housing Management – 4 May 2015
Director Policy & Communications – 8 September 2015
Strategic Director Corporate Resources – 30 October 2015
Director Housing Services – 1 July 2015 (TUPE transfer from Lambeth Living)
There were no severance packages in excess of £100,000 per annum in the
financial year 2015/16.

1.4

Before it takes effect the Pay Policy Statement has to be approved by a
resolution of the Council.

1.5

The Pay Policy Statement for 2016/17 has been updated in order to incorporate
the following:

Page 69




Reference to the time limited Voluntary Redundancy and Enhanced Severance
Scheme 2015/16 (Section 12)
Reference to proposed new legislation in relation to the recovery of public sector
exit payments (Section 13)
Reference to proposed new legislation in relation to a “cap” on public sector exit
payments (Section 14)

2.

Proposal and Reasons

2.1

Council is asked to approve the Pay Policy Statement for 2016/17 as required by
Section 38 (1) of the Localism Act 2011

3.

Finance

3.1

There are no specific financial implications arising from this report.

4.

Legal and Democracy

4.1

The body of the report sets out the statutory basis for the requirement to have a
Pay Policy under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011.

4.2

This report has been considered by the Deputy Leader (Finance & Investment),
Corporate Committee at their meeting on 28 January 2016 and senior officers.

4.3

There are no additional comments from Democratic Services

5.

Consultation and co-production

5.1

Corporate Committee at its meeting on 11 January 2012 advised that there was
no need to set up a remuneration committee so long as there was regular
reporting to them on the extent to which the council is meeting the requirements
of the Localism Act 2011. Update reports have subsequently been taken to
Corporate Committee on 9 January 2013, 2 April 2014, 25 March 2015 and 28
January 2016.

6.

Risk management

6.1

No potential risks have been identified associated with the recommendations set
out in this report

7.

Equalities impact assessment

7.1

The pay policy affects the entire workforce. The council has robust processes in
place for collecting and reporting on a range of employee data as it relates to
appointment and severance for staff with a protected characteristic. These
reports are considered by a range of Members and officers and represent a
culture of openness and transparency. Any significant changes or trends
identified will be subject to a full equalities impact assessment.

Page 70
8.

Community safety

8.1

None.

9.

Organisational implications

9.1

Environmental
None

9.2

Staffing and accommodation
This pay policy affects the entire workforce.

9.3

Procurement
None.

9.4

Health
None.

10.

Timetable for implementation

10.1 Not applicable.

Page 71
Audit trail
Name/Position

Councillor Paul
McGlone

Lambeth
Date Sent Date
directorate/division
Received
or partner
Deputy Leader
23.12.15
(Finance &
Investment)
Corporate Resources 15.12.15
23.12.15

Jackie Belton Strategic
Director
Helen CharlesworthChildren, Adults,
May Strategic Director Health
Sue Foster Strategic
Neighbourhoods and
Director
Growth
Nana Amoa-Buahin,
Corporate Resources
Director HR&OD
Alison McKane, Head
Corporate Resources
of Legal Services
Martin Crump
Corporate Resources
Senior Accountant
Report history
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Report no.
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information

1.5

23.12.15
23.12.15
23.12.15

07.01.16

Throughout

23.12.15

29.12.15

Throughout

23.12.15

04.01.16

3.

N/A
26.04.16
19.04.16
/ 16-17
No
No
N/A
Not applicable










Appendices

Comments in
para:

Localism Act 2011
Openness and accountability in local pay:
Guidance under section 40 of the Localism
Act 2011
Openness and accountability in local pay:
Guidance under section 40 of the Localism
Act 2011 (Supplementary Guidance):
February 2013
Council (20.05.15): Pay Policy: report and
minutes
Openness and accountability in local pay:
Guidance under section 40 of the Localism
Act 2011 (Supplementary Guidance):
February 2013
HM Treasury – draft Public Sector recovery of
exit payment regulations – December 2015
HM Treasury – draft Public Sector exit
payment regulations 2016

Appendix A: Lambeth Pay Policy
Statement 2016-17 (and accompanying
Appendices 1 and 2)

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 73

Appendix 1 to Pay Policy Statement 16/17

Voluntary Redundancy
and Enhanced Severance
The Scheme

2015-16
Page 1 of 8

Page 74

FINANCIAL TERMS FOR TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT
ON THE GROUNDS OF REDUNDANCY

1. Introduction
This document sets out the financial terms adopted by the council in the event of
redundancy and termination of employment on the grounds of business efficiency. It
also incorporates how the council will exercise discretionary powers over a
prescribed time period to make a discretionary severance payment in addition to a
redundancy payment. These discretionary powers are contained within the Local
Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation)
(England and Wales) Regulations 2006.
2. Scope
These financial terms apply to all council employees.
3. Financial Terms For Redundancy
Definition of Redundancy:
The definition of redundancy is contained in Section 139 of the Employment Rights
Act 1996. An employee who is dismissed shall be taken to be dismissed by reason
of redundancy if the dismissal is attributable wholly or mainly because:
 The council has ceased to provide the services or perform the function which
the employee is employed to provide. Or;
 The place at which the employee is employed is closing. Or;
 Fewer employees are required or expected to be required to carry out the
work that the employee is employed to do.
If an employee is dismissed on the grounds of redundancy, subject to a number of
qualifying conditions, they will receive:
a) A redundancy payment
b) A severance payment (provided the employee has volunteered for redundancy
and has formally accepted an offer of voluntary redundancy within the prescribed
time period). A severance payment will not be made in circumstances where the
redundancy is compulsory unless there is a record of a previous application for
Page 2 of 8

Page 75

enhanced severance being turned down by the council within the prescribed time
period.
Redundancy Pay:
This is a statutory payment that uses age and length of service to calculate the
number of weeks pay a redundant employee will be entitled to receive. A maximum
of 30 weeks is payable.
An employee with two or more years continuous service who meets the conditions
set out in Section 4 below will receive the statutory number of weeks redundancy
pay in accordance with the “ready reckoner” attached at Appendix A.
Employees should be aware that where a redundancy payment exceeds the limit
imposed by HMRC (currently £30,000), tax is payable on the excess amount.
Severance Pay:
This is a discretionary payment that is made in addition to redundancy pay in
circumstances where an employee has volunteered for redundancy. Severance pay
will be calculated by means of a multiple of the statutory number of weeks
redundancy pay.
A redundant employee who meets the conditions in Sections 4 and 5 may, at the
discretion of the council, receive severance pay in addition to statutory redundancy
pay. Severance pay is equal to one half of the numbers of weeks statutory
redundancy pay. For example, if the number of weeks statutory redundancy pay is
20 weeks pay, severance pay will be 10 weeks pay.
This provides a maximum combined total redundancy and severance payment of 45
weeks pay, but the actual number of weeks will depend upon age and length of
continuous service.
In circumstances where the combined redundancy and severance payments fall
below £5000 the council will enhance the total payment to a fixed sum of £5000 (Pro
rata for part-time staff).
Employees should be aware that severance payments are subject to assessment for
personal taxation. Where a redundancy and severance payment, when combined,
are greater than the limit imposed by HMRC (currently £30,000), tax is payable on
the excess amount.
Page 3 of 8

Page 76

Weeks Pay:
The value of a weeks pay for Redundancy Pay and Severance Pay will be
determined by the employees actual weekly pay, rather than the statutory maximum
(currently £475.00). Whether or not an element of pay is taken into account when
determining an actual weeks pay will depend on a number of factors, such as
whether it is contractual payment for a particular duty, whether it is a regular or
variable payment or whether it is re-imbursement for an allowance etc.
Where staff work variable weekly hours their weeks pay will be based on the
average weekly pay over a prior reference period of 12 weeks. This calculation will
be repeated at the actual time of dismissal and if a higher figure is achieved the
employees redundancy and severance payments will be calculated on the higher
amount. Otherwise calculations will be based on the previous estimated amount.
4. Conditions Relating To Redundancy Payments
 To qualify for a redundancy payment an employee must have completed a
minimum of two years continuous service with Lambeth council or a
“Modification Order body”. Continuous service is calculated by counting
backwards from the employees last day of service with the council’;
 Continuous service with other local authorities and other bodies listed in the
Redundancy Pay (Continuity of Employment in Local Government, etc.)
(Modification) Order 1999 counts for the purpose of this scheme;
A maximum of 20 complete years of continuous service will be taken into
account when determining entitlement to redundancy pay.
 If an employee is under notice of redundancy and:
 They accept a job offer from another local authority or Modification
Order body, whether in writing or not, including a job offer from the
council, before their last day of service,
And
 They begin that employment within 4 weeks of the end of the previous
employment
the dismissal will no longer constitute a dismissal for redundancy and no
redundancy or severance payment will be made.
Page 4 of 8

Page 77

In this event statutory continuity of employment will be preserved for the
purpose of calculating any future entitlement to redundancy payments that
might arise with the new employer.
 If an employee is offered alternative employment as described above and:
 The Council considers this to be suitable alternative employment; and
 The employee unreasonably refuses this employment
the dismissal will no longer constitute a dismissal for redundancy and
redundancy or severance payment will not therefore be made.
5. Conditions Relating To Severance Payments
 Severance payments will only be considered for employees aged under 55 on
their last day of service who are eligible to be a member of the Local
Government Pension Scheme (whether they are a member or not), and have
formally accepted an offer of voluntary redundancy within the prescribed time
period that the severance scheme is available;
 An employee aged 55 and over on their last day of service who is not a
member of the Local Government Pension Scheme (or is a member but with
less than two years membership of the scheme) and has formally accepted an
offer of voluntary redundancy within the prescribed time period will also be
eligible to be considered for a severance payment;
 An employee aged 55 and over on their last day of service who is a member
of the Local Government Pension Scheme with more than 2 years’
membership will not be eligible to be considered for a severance payment;
 Staff leaving the council on the grounds of compulsory redundancy will not be
considered for a discretionary severance payment unless there is a record of
a previous application for enhanced severance being turned down by the
council within the prescribed time period ;
 Severance payments are entirely at the discretion of the council;
 Staff volunteering to leave under these arrangements will not be re-employed
or re-engaged by Lambeth council (e.g. as an employee, consultant, agency
worker, etc.) within one year of their last day of service;
Page 5 of 8

Page 78

 To qualify for a severance payment an employee must have completed a
minimum of two years continuous service with Lambeth council or a
“Modification Order body” before a date to be determined by the council;
 Continuous service with other local authorities and other bodies listed in the
Redundancy Pay (Continuity of Employment in Local Government, etc.)
(Modification) Order 1999 counts for the purpose of this scheme;
 Employment must be continuous with the following exceptions:
 If an employee has pensionable employment within the meaning of the
NHS Pension Scheme Regulations 1995 this service will be taken into
account if the employee was statutorily transferred from the NHS to local
authority employment as a result of the Community Care Act 1990. Such
employment must be continuous. (If an employee voluntarily changed
employer continuous employment is broken);
 Where an employee has returned to local government service following a
break for maternity reasons, or reasons concerned with caring for children
or other dependents, they will be entitled to have previous service taken
into account for severance purposes provided the break in service did not
exceed eight years and that no permanent employment has intervened;
 If an employee voluntarily returned to Lambeth directly from an
organisation to which they were transferred from Lambeth under TUPE
provisions, they will be considered as having fully continuous service from
the beginning of their pre-transfer continuous service if the organisation
was an admitted body of the Local Government Pension Scheme. If it was
not, continuous service prior to the transfer will be aggregated with
continuous service accrued on return;
 There may be circumstances whereby exercising discretion to count
discontinuous service would help to alleviate hardship. The Director of
HR&OD will have the discretion to count such service.
 Severance payments will only be made if, during the remaining period of
employment with the council the employee:
 Is willing, when requested, to transfer to and undertake other productive
work for which they are capable;
Page 6 of 8

Page 79





Continues to cooperate with management in the undertaking of their
duties;
Maintains a reasonable attendance and performance record;
Remains in employment with the council for the full period required by the
council.

6. The Prescribed Time Period
The prescribed time period during which enhanced severance payments will be
available will run from 1 December 2015 to 31 March 2016. The following
arrangements will apply:
 Staff who have volunteered for and formally accepted redundancy with a last
day of service falling on or after 1 December 2015 and who meet the
conditions in Sections 4 and 5 will be entitled to a severance payment;
 Staff who are currently held on the “yes deferred” voluntary redundancy list
and who meet the conditions in Sections 4 and 5 will be entitled to a
severance payment;
 Staff will be able to apply for voluntary redundancy and, where eligible,
severance through the phase 6 voluntary redundancy programme that will go
live at the beginning of December 2015. In these circumstances staff must
formally accept voluntary redundancy on or before 31 March 2016 for the
enhanced terms to apply;
 Staff impacted by restructurings during the prescribed time period will also be
able to apply for voluntary redundancy and, where eligible, severance. In
these circumstances staff must formally accept voluntary redundancy on or
before 31 March 2016 for the enhanced terms to apply;
 It is anticipated that the majority of staff formally accepting voluntary
redundancy within the prescribed time period will leave the council by 31
March 2016. Some staff, through the council’s agreement, may leave earlier
than this date. The council will also retain the discretion to agree leaving dates
that occur after 31 March 2016 provided this would be in the best interests of
the council and the last day of service is no later than 30 September 2016.
Page 7 of 8

Page 80

This will include staff aged 55 and over who are not eligible for a severance
payment;
 The enhanced severance scheme will cease at the end of the prescribed time
period.
7. Exceptional Cases
Where the circumstances of a particular case justify a departure from these
arrangements the Director of HR&OD may vary the standard payment terms of
severance provided the overall payment does not exceed that permitted by
legislation.
November 2015

Page 8 of 8

Page 81
Appendix 2 – Pay Policy Statement – London Borough Lambeth – 2016/17 (As At 31
March 2016)
Report to Council – 18 May 2016
Pay multiple:
Relationship between highest paid salary and:






lowest earner
bottom quartile earners across the workforce
median average salary across the workforce
top quartile earners across the workforce
top 10% of earners across the workforce

Both tables exclude casual workers, agency workers, and all schools based staff. Salaries are
scaled to 1 FTE

Lowest Earner
Bottom Quartile
Median
Top Quartile
Top 10%
Highest Earner

Pro Rata Salary (£)
£17,154
£30,525
£34,380
£41,811
£47,350
180,000

Ratio against top earner
10.49
5.90
5.24
4.31
3.80
-

Remuneration, job title and name of officers at £100,000 per annum and above. At 31
March 2016:
Remuneration Job Title
(£)
180,000
Chief Executive

Employee Name
Sean Harris

Date Of
Appointment
23 March 2015

153,711

Jackie Belton

30 October 2015

Helen
Charlesworth-May
Sue Foster

2 September
2013
2 September
2013
13 January 2014

153,711
153,711
113,721*
116,145

Strategic Director: Corporate
Resources
Strategic Director: Children, Adults
& Health
Strategic Director: Neighbourhoods
& Growth
Director: Corporate Affairs

116,145

Director: Business & Customer
Services
Director: HR&OD

116,145

Mark Hynes*
***
David Ashmore

13 January 2014

Nana Amoa-Buahin

13 January 2014

Director: Adult Social Care

Gill Vickers ***

11 June 2014

116,145

Director: Major Capital Programmes

Mike Pocock

58,073

Director: Strategy & Commissioning
(Children)
Director: Strategy & Commissioning
(Housing & Communities)
Director: Strategy & Commissioning
(Neighbourhoods)

Maria Millwood**

2 September
2013
18 March 2013

Rachel Sharpe

18 March 2013

Adrian Smith

18 March 2013

116,145
116,145

Page 82
Remuneration Job Title
(£)
116,145
Director: Business Transformation

Employee Name

116,145

Director: Finance S151Officer

Christina Thompson 13 January 2014

105,249

Director: Housing Services

Cedric Boston ***

1 July 2015

109,584

Director: Policy & Communications

Julian Ellerby

106,302

Delivery Director: Housing
Management
Director: Education, Learning and
Skills
18

Neil Wightman

8 September
2015
4 May 2015

101,988
Total
headcount
Represented
as % of total
workforce

Julian Osgathorpe

Cathy Twist

Date Of
Appointment
01 July 2014

1 September
2013

0.7%

*Extra allowance as the deputy returning officer and as such his annual salary is £117,695.
** Salary shown as 50% as joint appointment with Lambeth NHS
*** Left Lambeth on 31 March 2016
Severance Packages In Excess Of £100,000 Per Annum.
None

Page 83

Appendix A
Report to Council – 18 May 2016
Lambeth Pay Policy Statement
Under the Localism Act
Policy Title: Pay Policy Statement 2016/17 (Remuneration for staff)
Policy Aim:
Section 38(1) of the Localism Act requires local authorities to produce an annual Pay
Policy Statement. This pay policy statement must be approved formally by the council
meeting itself and can be amended in-year if necessary. The purpose of the statement
is to provide transparency with regard to the councils approach to setting the pay of its
employees (excluding those working in local authority schools). This Pay Policy
Statement was noted by Corporate Committee on 28 January 2016 and approved by
Council on 18 May 2016.
General understanding of the remuneration of local authority employees is not well
developed, especially in the case of senior officers. Lambeth has therefore chosen to
use the statutory pay policy statement to provide assurance that remuneration levels
are and should be of interest to local citizens and tax payers at all times and generally
should be more transparent. Good governance demands clear, open and transparent
processes and mechanisms by which decision-makers can be held to account.
The Pay Policy Statement is published on the authority’s’ website and must be
complied with when the local authority sets the terms and conditions for any officer.
In keeping with our cooperative council principles and our current economic situation,
the aim of this policy is to articulate our well established and pre-existing pay,
remuneration, pension and severance guidelines for all staff in a single document.
All officers must understand, adhere to and enforce our current terms and conditions
with respect to recruitment, re-organisation, re-deployment and redundancy.
Scope and Strategy:
In determining the pay and remuneration of its employees, the council will comply with
all relevant employment legislation. This includes the Equality Act 2010, Part Time
Employment (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2000, The
Agency Worker Regulations 2010 and where relevant, the Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006. With regard to the Equal Pay
requirements contained within the Equality Act, the council ensures that all pay
arrangements can be objectively justified through the use of well established job
evaluation methods.
Lambeth has set its own benchmarks in the way that officers are recruited, selected
and retained – developed within our own collectively agreed employment policies and
procedures.
We make thorough decisions with regard to selecting key people, remuneration in
accordance with current market forces, managing future expectations of the council
and supporting key people in line with a well reasoned and transparent remuneration
package – based on compelling business case evidence.

Page 84

We note that in line with other London Boroughs, we have already met the standard
outlined in the Localism Act and have the expertise to maintain its principles of
transparency.
Responsibilities:
This policy applies to managers, HR officers and the Council as a whole. It applies to
any officer who is responsible for appointing staff and their payment. No individual
officer can make these decisions without reference to this overarching policy
statement, the Localism Act and the previously published guidelines for the
recruitment, retention or retirement of colleagues.
General Principles:
1. For the purpose of this Pay Policy Statement “Chief Officers” are defined as
including all chief and deputy chief officers within the Council as defined in section
2 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.
2. Full Council approves the appointment of the Chief Executive.
3. Full Council delegates the appointment of Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers
to a Member panel (Appointments Committee or Appointments Sub-Committee)
4. The responsibility for determining the level of remuneration for the Chief Executive
is delegated to the Director of HR&OD in consultation with the Leader, Deputy
Leader and the Leaders of the opposition parties. Remuneration is based upon a
salary range determined by an independent job evaluation process. The
responsibility for determining the level of remuneration for Chief Officers and
Deputy Chief Officers is delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with the
relevant Cabinet Member and the Director of HR&OD. Remuneration is based
upon a salary range determined by an independent job evaluation process. The
determination of the level of remuneration for all other staff, including posts
attracting salaries in excess of £100,000 per annum is based solely upon a salary
range determined by an independent job evaluation process. Discretion on the
precise salary level can therefore only be made within the evaluated grade for the
role. In most cases this will be the minimum point of the salary scale unless there
are compelling and evidence based reasons to do otherwise. Yearly cost of living
increases are negotiated nationally. The Council does not apply any bonuses or
performance related pay to any of its staff, including the Chief Executive, Chief
Officers and other senior officers.
5. All jobs (including those attracting salaries in excess of £100,000 per annum) are
evaluated by independent and qualified people using either the Hay Group
Management Ltd resource (for Chief and Deputy Chief Officers) or the Greater
London Provincial Council (for all other grades). These are well established
processes for setting the benchmark for job descriptions, evaluation of roles, the
grading of posts and the appropriate remuneration. Government legislation allows
schools to determine their own pay arrangements for staff. In determining its
grading structure and setting overall pay levels for all posts the Council takes
account of the need to ensure value for money in respect of the use of public
expenditure, balanced against the need to recruit and retain employees who are
able to meet the requirements of providing high quality services to the community
in an effective, efficient and collaborative way.

Page 85

6. From time to time it may be necessary to pay special allowances or supplements
to individual employees as part of their employment contract where specific
circumstances require this and where it can be justified in accordance with Council
policies. Such allowances are negotiated nationally or locally through collective
bargaining arrangements and/or as determined by council policy. Our recruitment,
retention and market supplements – usually associated with `hard to fill’ posts - will
be based on the current financial and skills requirements of the Council. We will
review all functions that attract these allowances using evidence and only when a
compelling business case can be made. Where appropriate and necessary
therefore, we may approve remuneration at another level.
7. From time to time it may be necessary for the council to engage consultants to
undertake time limited pieces of work. The payment of consultants in these
circumstances is strictly managed by the Council in accordance with its Supplier
Contract Management through a Neutral Vendor arrangement. Any such
engagements are reviewed on a regular basis.
8. We will continue to benchmark and evaluate existing job grades and posts with
London Councils in order to keep pace with market and austerity forces.
9. The job grade and level of remuneration will remain in accordance with the function
of the role.
10. All discretionary benefits under the Local Government Pension Scheme will be in
accordance with our published guidelines.
11. The employee contribution to the pension scheme is dependent on the annual
salary. There are 9 different contribution banding rates between 5.5% and 12.5%
depending on actual pensionable pay. Lambeth's employer contribution to the
pension fund for all contributing members of staff is 16.8%.
12. The Councils approach to statutory and discretionary payments on termination of
employment of all staff, including Chief and Deputy Chief Officers, prior to reaching
normal retirement age, is in accordance with Regulations 5 and 6 of the Local
Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation)
Regulations 2006 and Regulations 12 and 13 of the Local Government Pension
Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contribution) Regulations 2007. The council’s
current policy is set out in the Voluntary Redundancy and Enhanced Severance
Scheme “Financial Terms for Termination of Employment on the Grounds of
Redundancy”. A copy of the Scheme is attached as Appendix 1 to this Pay Policy
Statement.
13. On ceasing to hold office all staff, including Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers
will receive their contractual entitlements in relation to notice pay, redundancy pay,
accrued annual leave, pension etc. No non contractual payments will be made on
termination of a contract of employment of any employee, including Chief Officers
or Deputy Chief Officers unless there is a sound and robust business case for doing
so. Any termination payment paid to a Chief Officer or Deputy Chief Officer must
be approved by the Strategic Director Corporate Resources in accordance with the
Council’s Scheme of Delegation. It is the policy of the Council that all staff,
(including Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers), leaving the Council on the
grounds of redundancy or early retirement should not be re-employed as a
consultant or agency worker within one year from their last day of service.

Page 86

From 1 April 2016 new legislation is proposed regarding the recovery of public
sector exit payments where an employee subsequently returns to a public sector
employer, either as a direct employee or indirectly as an agency
worker/interim/consultant. For staff leaving the Council on or after that date and
who earn £80,000 per annum or more there will be new payment recovery
restrictions in place. These will apply to redundancy and severance payments and
to payments by the employer to the Local Government Pension Scheme that occur
when an employee leaves with immediate access to full pension rights. The broad
effect of the new legislation will be that any redundancy, severance and payments
made to the Local Government Pension Scheme in relation to staff earning
£80,000 or more per annum will be subject to recovery on a tapered basis, with the
repayment liability reducing proportionately over the period of one year after the
termination date.
14. From a date to be determined, (but not before 1 October 2016), new legislation is
proposed which will have the effect of capping at £95,000 the total amount of
redundancy and other exit payments that an employee can be paid when leaving
the public sector.
The cap will apply to staff at all levels and include any payments made by the
employer to a pension fund to compensate for the employee’s early access to their
pension benefits. The key elements which will be caught by the cap will be:


Pay in lieu of notice;



Redundancy payments (including any enhancements over and above statutory
limits);



Other severance payments (including ex-gratia and special severance
payments, whether or not as part of an Employment Tribunal claim);



The employer cost of funding redundancy and efficiency retirements as well as
other voluntary early retirements (i.e. “funding strain”)

15. For the purposes of this Pay Policy “lowest paid employees” of the Council are
defined as those on the lowest pay point in use by the Council. The Council
measures the relationship between the remuneration of its lowest paid employees
and the Chief Executive using a pay multiple in accordance with the statutory
guidance issued under s.40 of the Localism Act. Lambeth Council is a fully
accredited living wage employer.
Information on the pay multiple, senior salaries and severance payments as
highlighted in this report is attached at Appendix 2 to this Pay Policy Statement.
Governance


The Pay Policy Statement is reviewed annually and submitted to Corporate
Committee for noting and Council for approval. In the interests of improving
accountability and transparency, all appointments made to posts attracting
remuneration in excess of £100,000 per annum and all severance packages in
excess of £100,000 shall be highlighted.

_______________________

Page 87

Agenda Item 9.c

Council

18 May 2016

Constitution 2016-17 (in year changes)
Wards: All
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director Corporate Resources : Jackie Belton
Portfolio: Deputy Leader of the Council: Councillor Imogen Walker
Contact for enquiries:
wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk
Wayne Chandai, Democratic Services Manager 020 7926 0029

Report summary
Approval is sought to the Council’s Constitution 2016-17, to in year changes set out in appendix
one.
Finance summary
There are no financial implications arising from this report.
Recommendations
Council
(1) To approve the changes as set out in Appendix 1.

Page 88
1.

Context
The Council’s Constitution 2016-17 requires approval following changes by the
administration.

2.

Proposal and Reasons

2.1

Approval is sought to the Council’s Constitution for 2016-17, which sets out how the
Council operates, how decisions are made, and the procedures which are followed to
ensure that these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local people. The
Constitution consists of the following Parts:
Part 1 Introduction to the Council Constitution
Part 2 How the council makes decisions
Part 3 Rules governing how the council operates
Part 4 Codes and protocols
Part 5 Members allowance scheme (appendix 2)
Part 6 Management structure

2.2

The changes proposed re set out in appendix one and mainly relate to changing the way
motions are dealt with at Council.

2.3

There will now be the opportunity for two motions to be debated one from the
administration and one from the majority opposition.

3.

Finance

3.1

There are no specific capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this
report.

4.

Legal and Democracy

4.1

Various duties are imposed on the Council by virtue of Part II of the Local Government
Act 2000 and its subordinate legislation. In addition, the relevant references are set out
in the Constitution itself, in accordance with the statutory guidance and Modular
Constitution. In considering the recommendations, members should be aware that the
usual principles of administrative law will apply, e.g. all relevant factors must be taken
into account and all irrelevant ones ignored.

4.2

Following the adoption of the recommendations of this report the Council must comply,
as soon as reasonably practicable, with the following further publicity requirements:
(a) Publish annually – i.e. between 14 and 21 days before the first Forward Plan of that
year comes into effect) a notice in a local newspaper giving details of the contents and
operation of the Forward Plan;

Page 89
(b) Arrange for the Constitution to be available for public inspection and to supply, on
request, a copy of the Constitution to any person, on payment of such reasonable fee as
the Council may determine.

5.

Consultation and co-production

5.1

None.

6.

Risk management

6.1

None.

7.

Equalities impact assessment

7.1

None.

8.

Community safety

8.1

None.

9.

Organisational implications
None.

10.

Timetable for implementation

10.1

The changes made in the Constitution will take immediate effect.

Page 90

Audit trail
Consultation
Name/Position
Jackie Belton,

Alison McKane, Head
of Legal Services
Martin Crump: Finance

Councillor Paul Gadsby
Wayne Chandai,
Democratic Services
Manager

Lambeth
Directorate
Strategic Director
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources
Corporate
Resources –
Financial Planning &
Management
Chief Whip
Corporate
Resources

Report history
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Report no.
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information

Appendices

Date Sent

Date Received

05.04.16

05.04.16

04.04.16

04.04.16

05.04.16

05.04.16

05.04.16
04.04.16

05.04.16
04.04.16

Comments
in para:

Ongoing
n/a
N/A
N/A
No
No
N/A
N/A
Constitution 2016-17
1. Schedule of changes to the constitution –

Constitution 2016-17: Agreed in year amendments made by the Monitoring Officer (Part A)
(updated version)
Part/
Section,
Page
Page 141

Title

Existing wording

SO8

New wording

Existing wording in Appendix 1

New wording in Appendix 1

Status of
change
Agreed and
inserted
into
constitution

Page 91



a.



Constitution 2016-17: Amendments to be agreed by Council (Part B)
(updated version)
Part/
Section,
Page

Title

Pg116,
Ordinary
Meeting of
Council

Part 3 Rules
Governing
how the
Council
Operates

Existing wording

New wording

Status of
change

Receive motion (see rule 13);

To consider motions (normally one motion from an Opposition
Group and one motion from the Administration will be debated at
the meeting, with up to 30 minutes set aside for each) (see rule
13);

Seeking
approval

13.3 At the meeting
All motions and amendments on the agenda will be deemed
moved and seconded.

13.3 At the meeting
All motions and amendments on the agenda will be
deemed moved and seconded.
13.4 Amendments to Notices of Motion
Amendments must:
Pg129,
Motions on
Notice at
Council
Meetings

Part 3 Rules
Governing
how the
Council
Operates

a.
b.

not seek to add issues which do not strictly
relate to the original motion; and,
comply with 13.2 above (scope), 15.1 (notice)
and 15.6 (i) (reference to another body) or (ii)
(format).

Note: When the Head of Legal Services has, pursuant to
Rule 13.2, ruled out any motion or part of a motion,
any amendment or part of an amendment which
repeats the same words will also be ruled out.

Page 92

Motions may be referred to the Cabinet or a committee (with the
consent of the mover) or discussed at a Council meeting.
In the debate, councillors will be called to speak by the Mayor
(alternating group by group in numbers based on proportionality
with any individual and non-party members being included within
the administration's allocation), or be specified by procedural
motion where necessary.
All motions will be voted upon at the meeting.
13.4 Order of Debate
Subject to the above, the Democratic Services and Scrutiny
Manager shall include in the agenda, in the order in which they
have been received, all notices of motion properly given, unless
the submitting councillor has subsequently withdrawn it in writing.
The first motion for debate is from the majority opposition party,
and the second motion will be from the administration and will
adhere to the following order:
1st Motion
Five minutes, mover: Conservative
Three minutes:
3x Labour
1x Green

Seeking
approval

Five minutes summing up: Conservative
2nd Motion
Five minutes, mover: Labour
Three minutes:
1x Conservative
1x Green
2x Labour
Five minutes summing up: Labour
13.5 Amendments to Notices of Motion
Amendments must:
a. not seek to add issues which do not strictly relate to the
original motion; and,
b.
comply with 13.2 above (scope), 15.1 (notice) and
15.6 (i) (reference to another body) or (ii) (format).

15. Rules of Debate
15.1 Motions capable of debate
Only an emergency motion or amendments to the same or
motion without notice can be debated.

15. Rules of Debate
15.1 Motions capable of debate
a) Emergency motion or amendments to the same or motion
without notice can be debated.
b)

Page 93

Note: When the Head of Legal Services has, pursuant to Rule
13.2, ruled out any motion or part of a motion, any
amendment or part of an amendment which repeats the
same words will also be ruled out.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 95

Corporate Committee

Council

14 April 2016

18 May 2016

Agenda Item 9.d

Corporate Committee Annual Report 2015/16
Wards:

All

Report Authorised by:

Jackie Belton, Strategic Director, Corporate Resources

Portfolio:

Councillor Paul McGlone, Deputy Leader - Finance and Investment

Contact for enquiries:

dhughes@lambeth.gov.uk
David Hughes, Head of Internal Audit and Counter Fraud, 020 7926 9892

Report summary
This is the tenth Annual Report of the Corporate Committee which is to be submitted to the Council Meeting
on 18 May 2016. It provides a summary of the Committee’s activities during the year to fulfil its
responsibilities as set out in its terms of reference.
Finance summary
This report summarises the Committee’s oversight of the Council’s financial administration for the year
2015/16. However, the report does not seek decisions which will give rise to any direct capital or revenue
financial implications.
Recommendations
Corporate Committee
To consider and agree the Committee’s Annual Report for 2015/16 and recommend it to full Council for
approval.
Council
That the 2015/16 Corporate Committee Annual Report be approved.

Page 96
1.

Context

1.1

The Committee’s terms of reference states that the Committee is required to: “approve, for
submission to Council, an annual report of the activities of the Committee in discharging its various
audit functions”.

2.

Proposal and Reasons

2.1

The Corporate Committee Annual report for 2015/16 is set out in Appendices 1 and 2 and covers
the work of the Committee for the year, along with details of the reports considered during the year.

2.2

The Committee’s terms of reference, which was last reviewed and updated as part of the annual
review of the Council’s Constitution 2015-16 which was approved by Council on 15 April 2015, sets
out its remit as the Council’s Audit Committee which includes oversight of the following for areas
where the Committee receives reports from officers and the Council’s external auditor:

2.3



Internal Audit and Investigation functions, including the consideration of strategies and policies,
the annual assurance report, regular reports on completed work and performance of the Internal
Audit and Counter Fraud Service;



External Audit annual letter and related reports;



Review the annual statement of accounts and accounting policies;



Risk management arrangements;



Corporate Governance arrangements;



Annual Governance Statement;



Whistle blowing arrangements;



Bribery Act arrangements;



Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000; and,



Referrals from other committees.

The Committee’s terms of reference also include a number of non-audit responsibilities including the
following where periodic reports are received and considered by the Committee:


Approve the Council's statement of accounts;



Approve the Council Tax base and the National Non-Domestic Rate base;



Reports produced by the Chief Finance Officer;



Reports on personnel-related issues and Health and safety at work;



Adverse Local Government Ombudsman reports;



Adverse Housing Ombudsman reports;



Trustee of Trusts;



Elections;



Nominations for Freedom of the Borough;



Orders for designated public places;

Page 97

2.4



Rush Common Act 1806; and,



Naming of local streets and buildings.

During the municipal year 2015/16, the Corporate Committee met on:


9 July 2015;



24 September 2015;



3 December 2015;



28 January 2016; and,



14 April 2016.

3.

Finance

3.1

This report summarises the Committee’s oversight of the Council’s financial administration for the
year 2015/16. However, the report does not seek decisions which will give rise to any direct capital
or revenue financial implications.

4.

Legal and Democracy

4.1

Regulation 3 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (which are made in exercise of the powers
conferred by section 27 of the Audit Commission Act 1998(1) and section 134(6) of the Greater
London Authority Act 1999(2)) sets out the Council’s responsibility for ensuring that it has a sound
system of internal control which:
(a) facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims and objectives;
(b) ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is effective; and,
(c) includes effective arrangements for the management of risk.

4.2

Regulation 5 requires the Council to ensure that it undertakes an effective internal audit to evaluate
the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account
public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.

4.3

There are no additional comments from Democratic Services.

5.

Consultation and co-production

5.1

All members of the Corporate Committee were consulted on this report and their comments have
been incorporated into the report.

6.

Risk management

6.1

An ineffective audit committee could result in inadequate governance, risk and control arrangements
remaining unchallenged, resulting in failure to meet the Council’s objectives, increased risks of

Page 98
fraud, waste or error and the potential for adverse criticism from the external auditor or other
agencies.
7.

Equalities impact assessment

7.1

None.

8.

Community safety

8.1

None.

9.

Organisational implications

9.1

Environmental
None.

9.2

Staffing and accommodation
None.

9.3

Procurement
None.

9.4

Health
None.

10.

Timetable for implementation
N/A

Page 99
Audit trail
Consultation
Name/Position

Councillor A Garden
Councillor N Sabharwal
Councillor M Atkins
Councillor I Simpson
Councillor T Briggs
Councillor P McGlone

Jackie Belton, Strategic
Director
Christina Thompson, Director
Alison McKane, Head of
Legal Services
Maria Burton, Democratic
Services
Martin Crump

Lambeth
directorate/division or
partner
Chair, Corporate
Committee
Vice-Chair, Corporate
Committee
Member, Corporate
Committee
Member, Corporate
Committee
Member, Corporate
Committee
Deputy Leader for
Finance and
Investment
Corporate Resources

Date Sent

Date
Received

Comments in
para:

02.04.16

03.04.16

Throughout

02.04.16

05.04.16

Finance
Corporate Resources

02.04.16
02.04.16

04.04.16
05.04.16

Corporate Affairs

02.04.16

04.04.16

Finance: Financial
Planning &
Management

02.04.16

04.04.16

Report history
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Report no.
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

02.04.16
02.04.16
02.04.16
02.04.16

02.04.16

4

3

n/a
02.04.16
/15-16
No
No
Not applicable
Not a key decision
Agendas and Minutes of the meetings of
Corporate Committee in 2015/16
1. Corporate Committee Annual Report,
2015/16
2. Schedule of reports considered by
Corporate Committee during 2015/16

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 101
Appendix 1

London Borough of Lambeth
Corporate Committee Annual Report 2015/16

Chair’s introduction
I am very pleased to present this Corporate Committee Annual Report for 2015/16 to both the
Committee and to full Council.
The report shows that the Corporate Committee has undertaken its role effectively; covering a wide
range of topics and ensuring that appropriate governance and control arrangements are in place to
protect the interests of the Council and the community generally. We also considered reviews which
assessed the effectiveness of the Committee, in its Audit Committee role, against published best
practice along with that of the Council’s Internal Audit and Counter Fraud functions.
The Committee, in its role as the Council’s Audit Committee, has received regular reports from
officers on a wide range of governance, risk and control matters and has provided effective challenge
where improvements in those arrangements have been required. We have considered and agreed
the internal audit and counter fraud policies, strategies and work plans and received regular reports
from the Head of Internal Audit and Counter Fraud on completed audits, advisory reviews and
investigations which have enabled us to challenge officers where improvements are required.
We have also received and considered reports from the Council’s external auditor (Deloitte) on the
annual accounts for the Council and Pension Fund and their plans for the audit of the accounts for
2015/16.
I would like to thank all the members who served on the Committee during 2015/16. My thanks also
go to the Council officers who have reported to and supported the work of the Committee over the
past 12 months and our external auditors who have supported the work of the Committee over the
past year.

Councillor Adrian Garden
Chair of the Corporate Committee

Page 102
1. Terms of reference and membership
The terms of reference of the Corporate (Audit) Committee are set out in the Council’s Constitution
(see Part 2, section 1C).
The main purpose of the Committee is to provide effective oversight for the Council’s governance, risk
and control arrangements, including adherence to the requirements of the updated Accounts and
Audit Regulations 2015, to ensure that effective arrangements are in place to prevent, detect and take
action on fraud and corruption and the proper stewardship of public funds.
The Committee’s terms of reference was last reviewed and updated as part of the annual review of
the Council’s Constitution 2015-16 which was approved by Council on 15 April 2015. The main
change related to the transfer of responsibilities in respect of the Pension Fund (with the exception of
approving the Pension Fund annual accounts) which transferred to the Pensions Board and Pensions
Committee which were established from 1 April 2015.
We met formally five times during 2015/16. The Committee also met informally on 14 April 2016 to
consider its work programme for 2016/17.
During 2015/16 our Committee’s membership was as follows:




Councillor Adrian Garden (Chair)
Councillor Neil Sabharwal (Vice Chair)
Councillors Mary Atkins, Iain Simpson and Tim Briggs.

Councillors Bernard Gentry, Jack Holborn, Claire Holland, Louise Nathanson and Andrew Wilson
were designated as the Committee’s substitute members during 2015/16.
2. The Committee’s work programme
We agree a comprehensive work programme each year covering all aspects of our terms of reference
and review this at each meeting. Items can be added if the Committee feels it appropriate. Having
received reports the Committee also asks officers to provide further reports on action taken to
implement improvements recommended by the Committee.
The work undertaken by the Committee during 2015/16 fell into the following key areas:












Receiving regular updates on completed audits and investigations and the Annual Assurance
report which summarised the adequacy of the Council’s control environment for 2014/15;
Reviewing the 2014/15 Annual Accounts for the Council and Pension Fund along with the Annual
Governance Statement which assessed the Council’s overall governance arrangements;
Receiving further reports on the progress of the audit of the 2014/15 Annual Accounts;
Receiving the work plan and reports of the Council’s external auditors;
Reviewing and approving the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Strategy, Charter and Work Plans
for 2016/17 and a joint protocol to tackle fraud and corruption with Lambeth Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG);
Reviewing the Corporate Risk Registers and the Risk Management Strategy and Policy;
Reviewing and approving the Council’s policies for counter fraud, bribery, whistle blowing, money
laundering and covert surveillance;
Receiving reports on performance in respect of complaints, Members Enquiries and information
requests (under the Freedom of Information Act and Data Protection Act), along with a report
received from the Local Government Ombudsman;
Reviewing treasury management performance reports;
Receiving reports on procurement arrangements and the Procurement Annual Report; and,
Receiving and considering a report on the establishment of Housing Management and the
reintegration of the Council’s former Arms’ Length Management Organisation, Lambeth Living.

Appendix 2 sets out all of the reports which the Committee received and considered during 2015/16.

Page 103
3. Actions requested
The Committee made a number of special interventions when considering the agenda items and
maintained an Action Log which was reviewed at each meeting to ensure that matters raised were
addressed. Matters raised included:
a)

Requesting further reports in respect of:













b)

Progress being made regarding audit of the 2014/15 annual accounts;
Risk management reports on Children’s and Adult social care;
Further information and an update report on progress of the reintegration of Lambeth Living
into the Council;
Procurement reporting to include working with our contractors to ensure that the London
Living Wage and the Living Wage were being paid to their staff.
Corporate Complaints reports to include information on trends (Complaints, Member
Enquiries, Information Requests) over the last 5 years and comparisons/benchmarking with
other local authorities where this is available;
A report on the outcome of the detailed analysis of Street Care enquiries/complaints
identified when the Corporate Complaints Digest was presented;
Future Children’s Complaints reports to include BME information, more trend
analysis/benchmarking/comparison with other local authorities (statistic neighbours) on
performance and more focus on lessons learnt from complaints and service improvements
made as a result of such learning;
A report on progress in reducing dependency on agency workers following presentation of
the Pay Policy report.
A report on the digitisation of paper files in Children’s Social Care and on progress in
implementing the IT systems upgrade as requested when discussing risk management
arrangements in this area.
An update on the complaint resulting in the Local Government Ombudsman report presented
to the committee in December 2015; and,
Information from the Department for Work and Pensions to be requested on their work in
tackling benefit fraud to provide the Committee with a complete picture of efforts to tackle
fraud against the Council.

The Committee requested that, following consideration of reports, a number of actions be taken
including:





Further information on agency workers (including numbers, trends) would be collated and
shared with Committee Members, who asked that information on the highest paid
agency/consultants be circulated to them.
The Director of Corporate Affairs would meet with the Chair and the Chair of Overview and
Scrutiny Committee to establish the role of the two committees in ongoing monitoring of
Housing Management.
Directors to consider the lack of change in risk levels quarter by quarter which could be seen
as an inability of officers to address risks.
Refer to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee a report on how managers act on high-rated
risks once until new policies had had time to be implemented.

4. The Chief Internal Auditor’s Annual Report for 2014/15
In July 2015 we considered the Head of Internal Audit’s Annual Report for 2014/15 which was
prepared and presented by the Head of Internal Audit and Counter Fraud. This summarised the
performance and effectiveness of the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud teams and the outcomes of
the work which they had completed during 2014/15.
The Head of Internal Audit reported that internal audit work undertaken during 2014/15 had identified
that there were some major weaknesses in the framework of governance, risk management and
control and non-compliance with controls which put the achievement of organisational objectives at

Page 104
risk. This was based on a number of reviews undertaken in specific areas through the year, although
it was also noted that other reviews undertaken had identified good controls and governance
arrangements in place. The weaknesses identified meant that there were key areas of focus for
management to address during 2015/16 where low levels of assurance have been obtained
previously.
The Head of Internal Audit recognised that a key focus for the incoming Chief Executive who joined
the Council in March 2015 was to improve the organisation’s effectiveness through changes in
structure, officer and member governance, management oversight and performance management
arrangements. A number of measures had already been put in place or were due to be implemented
shortly which would strengthen governance, accountability and management oversight across the
Council to drive through the required improvements.
We agreed with the Head of Internal Audit’s opinion for 2014/15 that major improvements were
required to improve the adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk management and control.
In considering the Head of Internal Audit’s annual report the Committee received representations from
the Deputy Leader, Finance and Investment, the Chief Executive and Strategic Director Enabling
regarding the overall opinion. They set out and reiterated the actions already taken and those planned
to improve the Council’s governance and performance management arrangements.
5. The Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Strategy, Charter and Work Plans 2016/17
We considered the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Strategy and Charter for 2016/17 at our meeting
on 28 January 2016 and the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Work Plans for 2016/17 on 14 April
2016. The Plan represents a key area of interest for the Committee and covered the activities around
controls, assurance and governance arrangements within the Council. The strategy and plans
showed how the resources of the Internal Audit service, comprising an in house team and our
external provider (PwC) were to be applied to cover the key controls of the Council and address the
risks that the Council faced.
Regular reports throughout the year monitored the outcome of planned and reactive audit work
undertaken on specific aspects of activity around the Council’s control environment. Where Internal
Audit identified systems, services or areas as being Critical or High Risk, we challenged the reasons
for this and sought assurances that appropriate actions were being put in place to manage these risks
and that management could verify the actions taken with appropriate evidence.
We formally reviewed the 2015/16 plan at the mid-year stage to assess progress made against the
agreed plan and to consider amendments to the plan which were required as a result of changing
requirements and emerging risks.
6. Counter fraud strategic approach
We approved the strategic approach to counter fraud and Counter Fraud Work Plan for 2016/17 on 28
January 2016. The strategic approach sets out how the Council will:





Promote a counter-fraud fraud culture and engaging employees, members and contractors in
combating fraud and error
Investigate and report on identified fraud, error and debt, seeking appropriate sanctions and
redress where fraud is proven
Assess fraud risk, identifying the areas most vulnerable to fraud and assisting management to
develop effective counter fraud controls
Share good practice and develop effective internal and external relationships to combat fraud

During the year we have reviewed and approved a number of the Council’s counter fraud policies and
procedures, including those covering fraud, bribery, money laundering, whistle blowing and the use of
covert surveillance (RIPA). We also received the annual report on the use of covert surveillance
powers, noting that no requests to carry out surveillance had been made in the previous financial year

Page 105
with investigation teams using a range of other, less intrusive, investigative techniques to achieve
successful outcomes.
The Committee received regular reports on the outcome of completed fraud investigations being
undertaken by the Council’s counter fraud teams.
The Committee considered the Council’s arrangements for meeting the Data Transparency Code
2015 which requires local authorities to publish a wide range of data including that relating to counter
fraud costs and activity and how favourably this compared with the value of fraud identified,
prosecuted and recovered by the Council’s investigation functions.
7. Counter fraud activity
The Committee recognised the good work being done in respect of tenancy investigations, identifying
Council housing properties and those managed locally by housing associations for recovery which
had been subject to unlawful subletting. The Committee also welcomed the successful bids for
funding from DCLG which enabled the team to work with a number of housing associations with
significant numbers of properties within the borough, helping them to recover properties which were
being sublet and to develop their own capacity for tackling tenancy fraud in the future.
We recognised that the Counter Fraud Team progressed all remaining benefit fraud cases to a
successful conclusion, beyond the point at which the function transferred to the Department for Work
and Pensions Single Fraud Investigation Service on 2 February 2015. Their successes included
further custodial sentences for convicted benefit fraudsters and ongoing recovery of fraudulent
overpayments from those who had committed fraud against the Council.
The Committee continued to support commitment to conducting recovery action through the Proceeds
of Crime Act and civil recovery routes, to seek prosecutions and Unlawful Profit Orders under the
Prevention of Social Housing Fraud Act 2013, and in the joint working being carried out with
Community Safety, the Police and other agencies in tackling gang crime within the borough.
8. Relationship with the external auditors
Representatives of our external auditor (Deloitte) have been regular attendees at our meetings during
2015/16, presenting their plans for the audit of the Council and Pension Fund accounts for 2014/15
(their last year as our external auditor) and to report on the outcome of their work. The external
auditor had given a qualified opinion on the value for money statement and had yet to sign off the
Council’s accounts, with the main issue outstanding relating to the valuation of school assets. Our
new external auditor (KPMG), present their audit plan for the audit of the 2015/16 accounts at our
meeting in April 2016.
9. The Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement
We considered the draft Statement of Accounts for the Council and Pension Fund and the Council’s
Annual Governance Statement for 2014/15 at our meeting in July 2015. We were unable to receive
and approve the final version of the Accounts at subsequent meetings but ensured that we gave
proper consideration to the issues raised by the external auditor and robustly challenging officers
about the action they were taking to bring closure to the accounts process. We continue to press
officers to bring the matter to a conclusion and ensure that planning for the coming year’s accounts
preparation and external audit was progressing to enable earlier sign off of the 2015/16 accounts. We
agreed revisions to the Annual Governance Statement arising from the external auditor’s review.
10. Risk management
In September 2015 and April 2016 we considered the Council’s Corporate Risk Register to establish
whether the Council’s identification and management of its key risks was suitably robust. We also
considered and approved the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, Policy and Risk Appetite
Statement in September 2015.

Page 106
We sought assurances that proper risk management arrangements and procedures were in place in
adults and children’s social care, in particular the way in risks were being managed in Children’s
Services following the adverse Ofsted inspection. In addition, we received the statutory annual reports
on complaints from these areas.
11. Treasury management activity
Following the establishment of the Pension Board and Pension Committee on 1 April 2015 the
Committee retained oversight for treasury management activity in respect of the Council’s
investments and borrowing.
We received two reports on Treasury Management performance in September 2015 and January
2016 which confirmed that the Council’s level of gross debt stood at £412.7 million at the end of
September 2015, unchanged from the end of the previous financial year. The investment balance as
at the end of September 2015 stood at £239.5 million. The full year budgeted interest receivable for
was on course to be met.
12. Governance requirements
CIPFA published a statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit in Local Government in
December 2010 which contained a set of governance requirements. They recommend that each
authority should assess itself against to satisfy itself that it has effective governance arrangements in
place. Authorities are encouraged to see the Statement as representing best practice and use it to
assess their arrangements to drive up audit quality and governance arrangements.
We received and considered the outcome of the review of effectiveness carried out on the Internal
Audit Service through an external peer review. We were pleased to note that the Internal Audit
Service was found to be fully conforming or generally conforming in all areas and that only minor
improvements to arrangements were recommended as a result of the review which have been dealt
with appropriately.
We approved changes in the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Charter in January 2016 to ensure that
it continues to fully comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards requirements.
In April 2016, we received a report on CIPFA’s new Code of Corporate Governance which came into
effect in April 2016 and which would impact on the Annual Governance Statement for 2016/17 as well
as requiring changes to the Local Code of Corporate Governance from 2016/17.
13. Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA)
RIPA aims to ensure that public bodies respect the privacy of members of the public when carrying
out their investigations and that there is an interference with privacy only where the law permits it and
there is a clear public interest justification. The Council’s use of its powers under RIPA and the
Communications Order are subject to external scrutiny in the form of annual inspections by the Office
of Surveillance Commissioner’s Office (OSC) and the Interception of Communications
Commissioner’s Office (IOCCO) respectively. All applications for covert surveillance are subject to
judicial approval, in a magistrate’s court, to ensure the use of this technique is limited to only the most
serious criminal investigations which would result in a custodial sentence of at least six months.
In September 2015 we received an annual report on the use of these powers which identified that the
Council undertook no surveillance activity involving the use of Directed Surveillance or Covert Human
Intelligence Sources during the previous financial year. For the same period, no requests were made
to use RIPA powers relating to the Acquisition/Disclosure of Communications Data.
14. Public Engagement
We have considered issues over the last year that have generated a lot of public interest. Members
are always keen to hear views of the public and that has increased public participation at meetings.

Page 107
Members of the public have contributed to discussions around special audits and investigations,
reports on complaints and general housing issues.
15. Complaints, Member Enquiries and information governance
At our meetings in July 2015 and April 2016 we received the Corporate Complaints Digest which
focussed on the arrangements for, and performance of, handling of complaints, information requests
and members’ enquiries. We also considered reports on the handling of statutory complaints in
Children’s and Adult Social Care (September 2015 and January 2016 respectively).
In December 2015, we received and considered a report published by the Local Government
Ombudsman in respect of a complaint against the Council regarding the sale of a former short life
property. We sought assurances from officers that lessons had been learnt as a result of the findings
made and action was being taken to address the issues which led to the complaints.
16. Conclusion
Overall we believe that we have successfully fulfilled our role and responsibilities, as set out in the
Committee’s terms of reference, during 2015/16. Members demonstrated real commitment,
engagement and robust challenge in the issues before them. We would like to express our
appreciation to the Council staff, external stakeholders and our external auditors who have
contributed to our work and supported us throughout the year.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 109
Appendix 2
Summary of reports considered by Corporate Committee during 2015/16
Date of
Meeting
9 July 2015

Report Considered









Procurement Update
Corporate Complaints Digest
Lambeth Living Update
Annual External Audit Report – Grant Certifications
Draft Statement of Accounts
Annual Governance Statement
Head of Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Annual Report 2014/15
Work Programme and Action Monitoring

24 September
2015










Children’s Social Care Annual Complaints Report:
Annual Governance Statement 2014/15
Statement of Accounts and Annual Pension Fund Accounts
Corporate Risk Register
Audit and Investigations Update (including Annual RIPA Report)
Risk Management Strategy and Policy 2014/17
Treasury Management Performance Report
Work Programme and Action Monitoring

3 December
2015







Audit and Investigations Update
Risk Management Report on Children’s Social Care
Housing Management/Lambeth Living Reintegration Update
Ombudsman Report
Work Programme and Action Monitoring

28 January
2016











Approval of Tax Base and National Non-Domestic Rate Allocation
Audit and Investigations Update
Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Strategy 2016/17 and Review of
Counter Fraud and Investigation policies
Pay Policy
Procurement Annual Report
Treasury Management Report
Adult Social Care Annual Complaints Report
Risk Management in Adult Social Care
Work Programme and Action Monitoring










Audit and Investigations Update
Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Plans 2016/17
Corporate Committee Annual Report (for Council)
External Audit Plans in Respect of 2015/16 Accounts
Corporate Risk Register
Information Governance Group Report
Corporate Complaints
Work Programme and Action Monitoring

14 April 2016

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 111

Council

Agenda Item 10

18 May 2016

Council Motions
Wards: All
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director Corproate Resources: Jackie Belton
Contact for enquiries:
wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk
Wayne Chandai, Democratic Services Manager, 020 7926 0029
Report summary
Motions and amendments submitted by Councillors, in accordance with Standing Order 13, are
set out below.
Key to shading:
Bold – additions
Strikethrough – deletions

Motion 1: Councillor Jane Edbrooke
This council notes the outstanding efforts of Lambeth’s teachers and pupils in delivering another
year of excellent results and providing school places to all children, regardless of
ability. Ofsted’s annual report states that, despite high levels of disadvantage, Lambeth has
“nothing but good and outstanding secondary schools”, while 94% of our primary schools are
good or outstanding.
Council is very concerned, however, that these achievements will be undermined by the
Conservative Government’s plans to force all schools to become academies - regardless of the
wishes of teachers, pupils and parents – and ill-thought through changes to funding
mechanisms, which will see a 20% cut in Lambeth’s education budget.
Council further notes that:
-

The proposals in the Government’s White Paper amount to an ideological attack on
teachers and on local and parental accountability and demonstrates that the
Government has the wrong priorities for education.

-

The NUT estimates the cost of the process of academisation will be in the region of
£1.3bn and that this money could be better spent on funding schools places at a time
when there is a shortage of school places in London.

Page 112
-

There is widespread opposition to forced academisation from the Local Government
Association, Conservative councils across the country and MPs of all parties
The current national schools funding formula has helped Lambeth’s pupils achieve
remarkable year-on-year improvements, despite the high levels of deprivation that many
face, and any move to level down, rather than level up schools funding will jeopardise
further improvements.

Council calls on the Government to:
-

Halt its plans to force academy status and re-think its policy, which is undemocratic,
expensive, fails to meet the needs of local pupils, excludes parental involvement and
removes local accountability

-

Give the council the ability to ensure all schools support the needs of local children
including providing places regardless of ability and enough places to meet future
demand.
Look again at its planned new funding formula and ensure that London schools do not
see their budget needlessly slashed at a time when it is critical that we maintain and
increase levels of investment in their future.

-

Amendment 1: Councillor Scott Ainslie
This council notes the outstanding efforts of Lambeth’s teachers and pupils in delivering another
year of excellent results and providing school places to all children, regardless of
ability. Ofsted’s annual report states that, despite high levels of disadvantage, Lambeth has
“nothing but good and outstanding secondary schools”, while 94% of our primary schools are
good or outstanding.
Council also notes the limitations of the Ofsted inspection regime, particularly when
taking into account the needs of the most vulnerable children. It further notes that
Lambeth has the highest rate of exclusions in London from its primary schools, and the
fourth highest rate from its secondary schools.
Council also notes that the report last month from the Runnymede Trust entitled ‘Ethnic
Inequalities in London’ ranked Lambeth as being the worst borough in London by a very
long way, for ethnic inequalities in education.
Council is very concerned, however, that these any achievements will be undermined by the
Conservative Government’s plans to force all schools to become academies - regardless of the
wishes of teachers, pupils and parents – and ill-thought through changes to funding
mechanisms, which will see a 20% cut in Lambeth’s education budget.
Council further notes that:
-

The proposals in the Government’s White Paper amount to an ideological attack on
teachers and on local and parental accountability and demonstrates that the
Government has the wrong priorities for education.

-

The NUT estimates the cost of the process of academisation will be in the region of
£1.3bn and that this money could be better spent on funding schools places at a time
when there is a shortage of school places in London.

Page 113
-

-

There is widespread opposition to forced academisation from the Local Government
Association, Conservative councils across the country and MPs of all parties
The current national schools funding formula has helped Lambeth’s pupils achieve
remarkable year-on-year improvements, despite the high levels of deprivation that many
face, and any move to level down, rather than level up schools funding will jeopardise
further improvements.
The Council’s support for the establishment of academies in Lambeth makes it
much harder to resist the Government’s plans.
The Council needs to take action to reduce the high exclusion rate from
Lambeth’s schools.
The Council needs to take urgent action to address the huge ethnic inequality in
education in Lambeth.

Council calls on the Government to:
-

-

Halt its plans to force academy status and re-think its policy, which is undemocratic,
expensive, fails to meet the needs of local pupils, excludes parental involvement and
removes local accountability
Give the council the ability to ensure all schools support the needs of local children
including providing places regardless of ability and enough places to meet future
demand.
Look again at its planned new funding formula and ensure that London schools do not
see their budget needlessly slashed at a time when it is critical that we maintain and
increase levels of investment in their future.

Motion 2: Councillor Tim Briggs
This council agrees that there should be no increase in the volume, frequency or length of music
events on parks and green spaces in the borough. Any increase would accelerate the
profoundly negative impact of such events felt by the huge number of residents living nearby.
Amendment 1: Councillor Jack Hopkins
This council agrees that the revised events strategy should build on Lambeth’s record as
the only borough in London that gives back to local parks. Notes that proposals will
include a new formula to ensure income from events is fairly distributed and will reflect
the council’s need to use its resources to plug gaps in funding. Notes that guidance on
the appropriate volume, frequency and length of music events on parks and green spaces in
the borough has been developed with input from local residents and businesses, as well
as event organisers over five years and will be set out in the report. Any increase would
accelerate the profoundly negative impact of such events felt by the huge number of residents
living nearby.

Motion 3: Councillor Scott Ainslie
Council notes that:

Page 114




corporate tax evasion and avoidance are having a damaging impact on the world’s
poorest countries, to such a level that it is costing them far more than they receive in aid
this is costing the UK as much as £30bn a year
this practice also has a negative effect on small and medium-sized companies who pay
more tax proportionately.

Council further notes that the UK Government has issued Procurement Policy Note 03/14 (PPN
03/14) regarding tax avoidance and evasion. This applies to all central government contracts
worth more than £5m.
Council also notes the existence of voluntary schemes promoting tax compliance such as the
Fair Tax Mark, which can serve as an independent means of verification.
It further notes that in early 2015 new regulations required public bodies, including councils, to
ask procurement qualification questions of all companies for tenders over £173,000 for service
contracts and £4m for works contracts. However, these questions are not as detailed as the
PPN 03/14.
Council believes that bidders for council contracts should be asked to account for their past tax
record, using the standards in PPN 03/14, rather than the lower standards in the recent
regulations.
Council therefore calls for procurement procedures to be amended to require all companies
bidding for service contracts worth more than £25,000 and for works contracts worth more than
£50,000 to self-certify that they are fully tax-compliant in line with central government practice
using the standards in PPN 03/14, applying to contracts of the size specified above.
Council asks the cabinet to publicise this policy and to report on its implementation annually.
Amendment 1: Councillor Paul McGlone
Council notes that:
·
corporate tax evasion and avoidance are having a damaging impact on the world’s
poorest countries, to such a level that it is costing them far more than they receive in aid
·
this is costing the UK as much as £30bn a year
·
this practice also has a negative effect on small and medium-sized companies who
pay more tax proportionately.
Council further notes that the UK Government has issued Procurement Policy Note 03/14 (PPN
03/14) regarding tax avoidance and evasion. This applies to all central government contracts
worth more than £5m.
Council also notes the existence of voluntary schemes promoting tax compliance such as the
Fair Tax Mark, which can serve as an independent means of verification.
It further notes that in early 2015 new regulations were published. These required public
bodies, including councils, to ask procurement qualification questions of all companies for
tenders over £173,000 £164,000 for service contracts and £4m for works contracts. However,
these questions are not as detailed as the PPN 03/14.
Council believes that bidders for council contracts should be asked to account for their past tax
record, using the standards in PPN 03/14, rather than the lower standards in the recent
regulations.

Page 115
Council therefore calls for procurement procedures to be amended to require all companies
bidding for service contracts worth more than £25,000 and for works contracts worth more than
£50,000 to self-certify that they are fully tax-compliant in line with central government practice
using the standards in PPN 03/14, applying to contracts of the size specified above.
Council asks the cabinet to publicise this policy and to report on its implementation annually.
Council further notes that Lambeth, like all public bodies, is bound by the 2015 Public
Contract Regulations relating to procurement, which includes a raft of provisions relating
to non compliance with UK tax law and requires contracting authorities to exclude
suppliers from procurement if they fail to meet criteria that includes tax avoidance.
Notes that Lambeth uses the Pre Qualification Questionnaire (PQQ) from the Crown
Commercial Service for procurement above the EU threshold of £164k. This ensures we
keep up to date with changes in legislation and best practice and also assists
contractors who see a standard questionnaire rather than something different
everywhere they tender.
Further notes that Regulation 111 prevents a contracting authority from including a prequalification stage on any procurement where the value is below £164,000.
Further notes that the Council takes a proportionate approach to procurement, focusing
governance, controls and resources on high value/high risk procurement. Over the past
few years it has sought to remove the burden of bureaucracy including raising the
threshold for formal tender processes and documentation and standardising where
possible.
Motion 4: Councillor Matthew Bennett
This council notes the Government’s Housing and Planning Bill, currently being debated in the
House of Lords, which would threaten the provision of affordable housing in Lambeth and
deepen the housing crisis in the borough and across London.
Further notes:
- That the Bill would force councils to sell off hundreds of council homes without adequate
replacement, undermine secure tenancies for council tenants, remove the ability of councils to
deliver affordable homes from developments in favour of starter homes worth up to £450,000
and force some council tenants in Lambeth to pay thousands of pounds more in rent due to the
“pay to stay” policy.
- That the Bill undermines the Government’s claim to support localism and devolution, by giving
new wide and open-ended powers for the Secretary of State over councils and local
communities.
- That the Bill has faced significant opposition from politicians and councils of all parties from
across the country.
- That hundreds of residents from across Lambeth have expressed their concern about the
impact of the Bill and signed the petition by Lambeth Labour Group against this Bill.
- That the House of Lords has defeated the Government on key aspects of the Bill, including
“pay to stay”, starter homes and the replacement of council homes under Right-To-Buy.

Page 116
Council calls on the Government:
- To recognise the scale of opposition to these plans and their potentially devastating impact on
London by scrapping the Housing and Planning Bill.
Amendment 1: Councillor Scott Ainslie
This council notes the Government’s Housing and Planning Bill, currently being debated in the
House of Lords, which completed it’s House of Lords stages on 27th April, and
amendments to which are now being debated by both Houses of Parliament, which would
threaten the provision of affordable housing in Lambeth and deepen the housing crisis in the
borough and across London.
Further notes:
- That the Bill would force councils to sell off hundreds of council homes without adequate
replacement, undermine secure tenancies for council tenants, remove the ability of councils to
deliver affordable homes from developments in favour of starter homes worth up to £450,000
and force some council tenants in Lambeth to pay thousands of pounds more in rent due to the
“pay to stay” policy.
- That Lambeth Council has itself sold off dozens of shortlife properties while the £78
million it says it has raised from these sales has not been used to build new council
homes, meaning the Council is in a weaker position to oppose the Bill.
- That the Council’s plans to demolish council housing, and replace it with housing
controlled by a Special Purpose Vehicle would also remove important securities from
tenants, including the Right to Repair, undermining its opposition to the Bill.
- That the Bill undermines the Government’s claim to support localism and devolution, by giving
new wide and open-ended powers for the Secretary of State over councils and local
communities.
- That the Bill has faced significant opposition from politicians and councils of all parties from
across the country.
- That hundreds of residents from across Lambeth have expressed their concern about the
impact of the Bill and signed the petition by Lambeth Labour Group against this Bill.
- That the House of Lords has defeated the Government on key aspects of the Bill, including
“pay to stay”, starter homes and the replacement of council homes under Right-To-Buy.
Council calls on the Government:
- To recognise the scale of opposition to these plans and their potentially devastating impact on
London by scrapping the Housing and Planning Bill.
Council resolves to:
-

Sell no more shortlife properties and scrap its plans to set up a Special Purpose
Vehicle, which undermine its opposition to the Government’s Housing and

Page 117
Planning Bill
-

Implement the proposals of residents, such as those at Cressingham Gardens,
who want new, truly affordable council housing to be built as an alternative to the
plans of both the Government and Lambeth Council.

Motion 5: Councillor Paul McGlone
Council notes that conflicts in the Middle East have created the largest refugee crisis in
generations and thousands of people, including many children, have died while seeking
sanctuary from the violence by trying to cross the Mediterranean Sea.
The UK, and particularly Lambeth, has a long and important tradition of offering sanctuary to
those who need protection, as Council heard movingly during its meeting in November. This is
why it is shameful that the Tory Government recently blocked the ‘Dubs amendment’ to the
Immigration Bill that would have offered refuge to 3,000 unaccompanied children currently
stranded across Europe.
Council also notes that this administration, working with London Councils, has led the way in
calling for the Government to accept more refugees and we stand ready to play our part in
helping to accommodate more Syrian refugees here in Lambeth after welcoming the first family
in April this year.
This Council resolves to:




Call on the Government to simplify the processes and clarify the support and funding
that will available over the long-term to accommodate and support refugees fleeing
violence and devastation in Syria, particularly unaccompanied minors;
Support Lambeth Citizens’ campaign to encourage private sector landlords to work with
the council to provide accommodation for Syrian refugee families;
Continue working with local community and voluntary sector partners, to ensure that
refugees are welcomed in Lambeth and afforded the help and support they need in
accessing local services.

Amendment 1: Councillor Scott Ainslie
Council notes that conflicts in the Middle East have created the largest refugee crisis in
generations and thousands of people, including many children, have died while seeking
sanctuary from the violence by trying to cross the Mediterranean Sea.
The UK, and particularly Lambeth, has a long and important tradition of offering sanctuary to
those who need protection, as Council heard movingly during its meeting in November. This is
why it is shameful that the Tory Government recently blocked the ‘Dubs amendment’ to the
Immigration Bill that would have offered refuge to 3,000 unaccompanied children currently
stranded across Europe.
Council also notes that this administration, working with London Councils, has led the way in
calling for the Government to accept more refugees and we stand ready to play our part in
helping to accommodate more Syrian refugees here in Lambeth after welcoming the first family
in April this year.

Page 118
Council notes that it has worked with other London Councils to accommodate Syrian
refugees, but that the Council could take more. It notes that according to information
published by Citizens UK on 26th April, out of the 1,337 Syrians who have been resettled
through the Vulnerable Persons Resettlement Scheme, only 43 have been relocated to
London. It further notes that according to Citizens UK, on 26th April, Camden, Barnet,
Kingston and Islington Councils had resettled refugees, while Lambeth Council had not.
Council further notes that it has invited a Home Office secondee to be based at the
Council, with a view to cutting the costs of supporting those with No Resource to Public
Funds. Council further notes the concerns raised by the Migrants Rights Network about
this, in particular the high triggers imposed to undertake a Child in Need Assessment for
families who are presenting as needing support, and the safeguarding concerns this
places for vulnerable families.
This Council resolves to:







Call on the Government to simplify the processes and clarify the support and funding
that will available over the long-term to accommodate and support refugees fleeing
violence and devastation in Syria, particularly unaccompanied minors;
Support Lambeth Citizens’ campaign to encourage private sector landlords to work with
the council to provide accommodation for Syrian refugee families;
Continue working with local community and voluntary sector partners, to ensure that
refugees are welcomed in Lambeth and afforded the help and support they need in
accessing local services.
Work more quickly in the future to welcome refugees and take a stronger lead.
Call on the new Mayor of London to create a deputy mayor for citizenship and
integration, who will be personally charged with making sure at least 10 Syrian
families are resettled per borough, per year.
End its collusion with the Home Office over those with No Recourse to Public
Funds, which threatens the welfare of migrants and refugees in Lambeth.
_______________________

